










November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2018

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Vice-Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to
order at 5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Ian Montgomery
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Excused: David Freistroffer

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

September 6, 2018 – Special Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the meeting minutes for September 6, 2018 Special Meeting as
presented.

Moved by Tera Hooiman, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed (5-0, Commissioner Evi Buell abstained).



November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7

September 18, 2018 – Special Joint Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the minutes from the September 18, 2018 Special Joint Meeting as
presented.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed. (4-0, Commissioners Stefan Beck and Ian Montgomery abstained)

October 2, 2018 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the minutes from the October 2, 2018 as presented.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed. (4-0, Commissioners Tera Hooiman and John Anderson abstained)

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2-18,
Ordinance No. 834, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically Title
3, Chapter 3, of the Elko City Code entitled “Subdivisions”, specifically a repeal and
replacement of the chapter, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that this had been a great, but lengthy process. She
thought they were finally to the point where they have a good code for the City and the
Developers. There has been some food cooperation between the developers and the City. She
explained that she wasn’t going to go over all of the changes, because she hoped everyone had
time to go through it. There have been a lot of changes. A lot of ambiguity has been removed
throughout the Code. The Performance Agreements and Performance Guarantee Sections have
been changed. It wasn’t in chronological order before, and now it is. It’s clearer, in order, and it
gives the City and developers more flexibility. Some of the developers are here that were part of
the working group. The biggest change to the Code was that we gave the developers the option to
build with their own resources, instead of bonding. By doing that they would only be required in
their Performance Agreement to bond for the Quality Assurance and Quality Control. They can
build out their subdivision, they can then record their map, and get building permits. Or there is
the option that we’ve had in the past where they can bond for the subdivision, record their map,
start getting building permits, and build the houses while they are building the subdivision. That
flexibility has been added in to the Code. In the Performance Agreement Section a provision has
been added that if a developer bonds, they can draw that down.

Scott MacRitchie, 312 Four Mile Trail, stated that he appreciated the process and that he didn’t
expect the cooperation that they received from Staff, Planning Commission, City Council, and
the City Attorney. They allowed the developers to have a real voice in the Code. They tried hard
to address the specific concerns they had about the Code and tried to come up with a framework



November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 7

that they could live with, along with knowing the City had their own concerns. He stated that he
couldn’t be more pleased with the result.

Ms. Laughlin recommended approval and to move it towards the City Council for the first
reading.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, recommended approval.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, recommended approval.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended approval. He emphasized the comments
by the City Manager, which was that that would be based on joint meetings and subsequent
working group meetings to support the recommendation.

Commissioner Stefan Beck thanked Mr. MacRitchie for his comments.

Ms. Laughlin said she could answer questions about specific sections of the Code if anyone had
any.

Vice-Chairman Jeff Dalling said that everyone had been pretty involved in this process, and he
thought it was a pretty good process with staff and developers. He thought everyone was pretty
happy with the end result.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman said it was a lot easier for her to understand, compared to the
previous version.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an Ordinance No. 834,
entitled Divisions of Land repealing and replacing Title 3, Chapter 3 of the Elko City Code
entitled Subdivisions.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Ian Montgomery.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 3-18,
Ordinance No. 836, specifically an amendment to Title 3, Chapter 4, Section 2 of the
Elko City Code entitled “Planning Commission”, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Ms. Laughlin explained that after the meeting a few months ago, we had some questions that
came up in regards to the quorum for action from the Planning Commission. Whether it was the
majority of the members of the Planning Commission, or the majority of the member that are
present at the meeting. Looking back at the history of the Planning Commission after that
meeting, and getting legal opinion. Staff and Legal Counsel looked back at a Resolution 1-95,
which was done after the Open Meeting Law went into effect. That Resolution gave the rules
and order of the Planning Commission. In that Resolution it stated that official action and
quorum is the majority of the members present at that meeting. You have to have a quorum at the
meeting to conduct business, but the vote would be with the majority of the members at the



November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7

meeting. That Resolution conflicted with the City Code. The ruling from the City Attorney was
that Resolution 1-95 would rule and over cede the section of the Code. This Ordinance is to
change Section 3-4-2(C) to talk about the quorum being the majority of the present members at
the meeting. She recommended approval and to forward to the City Council for a first reading.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval.

Mr. Holmes recommended approval

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an Ordinance, which
approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment 3-18 of the Elko City Code specifically Section 3-
4-2.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review and consideration of Final Plat No. 12-18, filed by DDS Properties, LLC, for
the development of a subdivision entitled Humboldt Hills involving the proposed
division of approximately 9.443 acres of property into 26 lots for residential
development within the R1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the east side of W Jennings Way,
approximately 120’ north of Cortney Drive.  (APN 001-01H-001).

Dusty Shipp, 959 Montrose Lane, explained that this was Humboldt Hills, it is 26 lots. The lots
are 8,000 to 22,000 square feet.

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated October 23, 2018. Staff
recommended approval with the 13 conditions and the findings listed in the Staff Report.

Vice-Chairman Dalling asked Mr. Shipp and Ms. Carter if they were aware, and consented to the
conditions listed. (Yes)

Mr. Thibault recommended approval with two conditions, which were listed in the Staff Report.

Mr. Holmes recommended approval.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Final
Plat No. 12-18 with the conditions listed in the City of Elko Staff Report dated October 23,
2018, listed as follows:



November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 7

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section
3-3-44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance
with Section 3-3-45 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 of city code, the
public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years
of the date of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated
in city code.

2. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council at the time of
Final Plat approval by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of
approval of the Final Plat by the City Council.

4. The Final Plat is approved for 26 single family residential lots.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision after the
performance agreement has been executed by the city and the developer and the
civil improvement plans have been approved by the City staff.

6. State approval of the civil improvements and final plat is required.

7. Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions are required.

8. Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

9. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the
qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with
the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal
to the City of Elko. The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest
edition Standard Specifications for Public Works. All Right –of-Way and utility
improvements are to be certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

10. Add a reference to the vacation of Jennings Way Document No. 746054 to the plat.
This condition shall be satisfied prior to consideration of the Final Plat by the City
Council.

11. Show a survey monument location at the intersecting center lines of Jennings Way
and Eagle Loop Road. This condition shall be satisfied prior to consideration of the
Final Plat by the City Council.

12. The civil improvement plans are to be revised in accordance with the city review
letter dated October 30, 2018 for review and possible approval. This condition shall
be satisfied prior to consideration of the Final Plat by the City Council.

13. Construction, with the exception of grading, shall not commence prior to Final plat
approval by the City Council, issuance of a will serve letter by the city and approval
of the civil improvement plans by the State.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support her recommendation are the Final Plat for
Humboldt Hills has been presented before expiration of the subdivision proceedings in
accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Plat is in conformance
with the Preliminary Plat. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use



November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 7

Component of the Master Plan based on a modification of standards granted under the
preliminary plat application for 2.75 units per acre versus the minimum density of 4 units
per acre stipulated in the Master Plan. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with
the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The proposed development conforms to
Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27 (inclusive) with the exception of 3-3-24(F). A modification of
standard was approved for lots 16 through 20 as double front lots with access restricted to
Eagle Loop Road. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in
conformance with Section 3-3-40 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted civil
improvement plans in conformance with Section 3-3-41 of City Code. The plans have been
reviewed by City Staff. Minor revisions are required as outlined in the city review letter
dated October 30, 2018. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the City and State agencies
for review to receive all required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-
3-42 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans, which are in
conformance with Section 3-3-43 of City Code with the exception noted under 3-3-41. The
Subdivider is required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to Section 3-3-44
of City Code. The Subdivider is required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated
in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of City Code. The
proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of
City Code. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by John Anderson.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there were not a whole lot of items to City Council from
the Planning Commission. On the 23rd, the Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 3
was on the agenda, and it was tabled. It will be on the agenda again next Tuesday.
Their Performance Agreement will also be on that agenda, and they are also
requesting a waiver and a possible variance for some additional building permits for
that subdivision while they are waiting on State approval. ON the upcoming City
Council agenda there will be a revision to a land sale that has been in the works for a
little over a year.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there will be an RDA Meeting prior to the City Council
meeting on the 13th. That agenda will include the final acceptance of the Centennial
Park Expansion Project and a request of funding for replacement to LED Lighting for
the corridor lights from 3rd to 7th Street. The RAC had an appreciation recognition
awards program on their last agenda, and they have worked through details on that.
That will hopefully start in the beginning of 2019.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.



November 6, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings.

Ms. Laughlin reported that in December the Planning Commission would be
discussing the 2019 meeting dates. The two ordinances that were approved tonight
will go for first readings at the next City Council meeting. There will be Site Plan
Review on the December agenda, as well as a Parking Waiver, and possibly a few
other things.

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes.

F. Planning Commission evaluation.  General discussion pertaining to motions, findings,
and other items related to meeting procedures.

G. Staff.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Vice-Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created on 12/15/2016  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

7-18, filed by Donald Carlson and Valvet Carlson, for a change in zoning from C- 

General Commercial and GI- General Industrial to R-Single Family and Multiple 

Family Residential, approximately .287 acres of property, FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The applicant would like to get the zoning consistent with 

the existing land use.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 7-18 based on facts, findings 

and conditions as presented in Staff Report dated November 14, 2018. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 14, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  High Desert Engineering 
640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

tcballew@frontiernet.net 

 

Donald Carlson 

1076 Court Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

Valvet Carlson 

925 River Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 

 

mailto:tcballew@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 14, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Rezone 7-18
APPLICANT: Donald Carlson and Valvet Carlson
ADDITIONAL APPLICATION: Variance Application 11-18, 12-18 & 12-18, PM

10-18

A change in zoning district boundary from C- General Commercial & GI- General
Industrial to R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 7-18
Donald Carlson & Valvet Carlson
APN: 001-364-009, 001-364-010
& 001-364-011

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-364-009, 001-364-010 & 001-364-011

PARCEL SIZE: 12,500 sq. ft. for all three parcels combined

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial and GI – General Industrial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-DTWN) Mixed Use Downtown

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed land consistent with Residential uses

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

 Northwest: C- General Commercial / Developed
 Northeast: R- Residential / Developed as residential
 Southwest: GI – General Industrial / Developed as commercial/industrial
 Southeast: GI- General Industrial / Developed as industrial

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 Two of the three parcels are currently developed with residential land uses.
 The area is generally flat.
 The area is accessed from 9th Street and River Street with alley access.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. APN 001-364-009 & 10 are owned by Donald Carlson.
2. APN 001-364-011 is owned by Valvet Carlson.



REZONE 7-18
Donald Carlson & Valvet Carlson
APN: 001-364-009, 001-364-010
& 001-364-011

Page 3 of 5

3. The rezone includes all three parcels.
4. The area fronts 9th Street and River Street.
5. The properties are currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.
6. APN 001-364-009 & 10 are proposed to be merged with Parcel Map application 10-18.
7. APN 001-364-011 is not required a variance application for setbacks but is required for

minimum lot area to be in conformance with R- Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential Zoning District.

8. The combination of parcels APN 001-364-009 & 010 will be required a variance to be in
conformance with front yard and exterior side yard setback requirements.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Mixed Use Downtown.
2. Supporting zone districts for Mixed Use Downtown are C- General Commercial. Certain

residential uses are permitted under the General Commercial district with a conditional
permit.

3. The existing land use of the properties is not consistent with the designated land use in
the Master Plan.

4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

5. Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required
under Elko City Code 3-2-21.

The proposed zoning amendment is not in strict conformance with the land Use Component of
the Master Plan, is not required to be in strict conformance with the master plan and does not
frustrate the goals and policies of the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from River Street and 9th Street.
2. River Street is unclassified but functions as a residential collector.
3. 9th Street is classified as Commercial / Industrial Collectors.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The parcels are not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The parcels are not located within any designated capture zones for municipal wells. The
properties are fully developed and connected to a programmed sanitary sewer system.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:



REZONE 7-18
Donald Carlson & Valvet Carlson
APN: 001-364-009, 001-364-010
& 001-364-011

Page 4 of 5

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. APN 001-364-010 does not meet
the setback requirements for the R-Residential zoning district. APN 001-364-011 does
not meet the minimum lot area requirement for the R- Residential zoning district.

As a result of the above referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for
variances for the setback requirement under Variance application 11-18 and the minimum lot
area requirement under variance application 13-18.

Approval of the variance applications 11-18 and 13-18 is required for the proposed zone district
to conform to section 3-2-4(B) of city code.

SECTION 3-2-5(E) and (G) – Residential Zoning District:

1. Parcel 001-364-010 does not meet the requirements under 3-2-5(G) for front and exterior
side yard setbacks. The property was analyzed with the configuration of the two parcels
combined as proposed with Parcel Map application 10-18.

2. Parcel 001-364-011 does not meet the requirement for minimum lot area.
3. The existing uses are consistent with the listed principal uses permitted.

As a result of the above referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for
variances for the setback requirements under Variance application 11-18 and the minimum lot
area under Variance application 13-18.

Approval of the variance applications 11-18 and 13-18 is required for the proposed zone district
to conform to sections 3-2-5(E) and (G) of city code.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-8:

The parcels are not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zoning amendment is not in strict conformance with the Land Use
Component of the Master Plan, is not required to be in strict conformance with the
Master Plan and does not frustrate the goals and policies of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed rezone is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and
is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The parcels are not located within the redevelopment area.



REZONE 7-18
Donald Carlson & Valvet Carlson
APN: 001-364-009, 001-364-010
& 001-364-011

Page 5 of 5

4. The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

5. Approval of the variance applications 11-18 and 13-18 is required for the proposed zone
district to conform to section 3-2-4(B) of city code.

6. Approval of the variance applications 11-18 and 13-18 is required for the proposed zone
district to conform to sections 3-2-5(E) and (G) of city code.

7. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

8. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Planning Department:

1. Variance applications 11-18, 12-18 and 13-18 are approved and all the conditions are
satisfied.

2. Parcel Map 10-18 be approved and recorded with Elko County Recorder.

3. All conditions for the rezone are satisfied prior to the Mayor signing the resolution to
rezone the property





















HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC  640 Idaho Street 
Thomas C. Ballew  Elko, NV  89801 
Nevada P.L.S. 5072 page 1 of 1 (775) 738-4053 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Donald & Valvet Carlson 
 

Application for Zone Change 
 

November 9, 2018 
 

Lots 13-17 of Block 12 as shown on the map of Ballou’s Addition to the Town of Elko, Nevada, 

recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, at file number 2. 

 

 



Agenda Item # I.A.2 

Created on 6/19/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 11-18, filed by Donald 

Carlson for a reduction of the required exterior side yard setback from 12’ to 11.3’ 

and the required front yard setback from 15’ to 8.5’, within a R (Single Family and 

Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, in conjunction with a zone change 

application, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
2. Meeting Date: December 4, 2018 

 
3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 
4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a variance for the required 

front yard setback and exterior side yard setback for an existing structure in 

conjunction with a rezone to R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve with the findings, facts and 

conditions listed in Staff Report dated November 15, 2018 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 15, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  High Desert Engineering 
640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

tcballew@frontiernet.net 

 

    Donald Carlson 

    1076 Court Street 

    Elko, NV 89801 

     

 

 

mailto:tcballew@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 15, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.2
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 11-18
APPLICANT: Donald Carlson
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 128 9th Street
RELATED APPLICATIONS: Rez 7-18, PM 10-18, & Var 12-18

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-5, requiring minimum front yard
and exterior yard setbacks in a R- Single Family Multiple Family Residential Zoning
District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



VAR 11-18
Donald Carlson

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-364-010

PARCEL SIZE: 3,900 sq. ft., 8,124 sq. ft. after combined with
approval of PM 10-18

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial; applied for a rezone to R-
Residential with REZ 7-18

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-DTWN) Mixed Use Downtown

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed land consistent with Residential uses

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

 Northwest: C- General Commercial  / Developed
 Northeast: R- Residential  / Developed as residential
 Southwest: GI – General Industrial  / Developed as commercial/industrial
 Southeast: GI- General Industrial / Developed as industrial

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The parcel is currently developed as a residential land use.
 The area is generally flat.
 The area is accessed from 9th Street and River Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22  Variances

BACKGROUND:

1. APN 001-364-009 & 10 are owned by Donald Carlson.
2. The variance for front and exterior side yard setback requirements relates to the existing

residence on APN 001-364-010. APN 001-364-009 currently is developed with a storage
accessory structure which is proposed to be demolished.

3. The area fronts 9th Street and River Street with alley access.
4. The properties are currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.

MASTER PLAN - Land Use:

1. Land Use is shown as Mixed Use Downtown.
2. Supporting zone districts for Mixed Use Downtown are C- General Commercial.



VAR 11-18
Donald Carlson

Page 3 of 5

3. The existing land use of the property is not consistent with the designated land use in the
Master Plan.

4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required under Elko
City Code 3-2-22. The proposed variance does not frustrate the goals and policies of the Master
Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

SECTION 3-2-5 RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT:

1. Under the property development standards for permitted principal uses:
a. Lot Area: For existing platted subdivisions characterized by twenty five

foot (25') wide lots and situated within a residential zoning district, any lot
or parcel reconfiguration or resubdivision shall adhere to a minimum lot
area of five thousand (5,000) square feet.

b. Lot Width: 60 ft.
c. Lot Depth: 100 ft.
d. Front yard Setback: 15 feet
e. Rear yard setback: 20 feet
f. Interior side yard setback: 5 ½ feet
g. Exterior side yard setback: 12 feet

The property combined with the approval of Parcel Map 10-18 meets the minimum lot area
requirement, therefore, the application has been evaluated as one parcel and conditioned with the
approval of the parcel map.

Approval of Variance 11-18 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 7-18 and Parcel Map 10-18
will bring the property into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

 The property is improperly zoned for the developed use of the property.
 The existing property is a unique shape and appears to have a portion of the

property gained at one time by boundary line adjustment with the neighboring
property.

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of



VAR 11-18
Donald Carlson

Page 4 of 5

the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 The property is improperly zoned for the developed use of the property.
 As currently developed there are encroachments into setbacks.
 The applicant has applied for a zone change of the property to conform to the

Master Plan and existing use of the property.
 The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the fact the property is

improperly zoned for the existing use of the property restricting the applicants
ability to improve upon and/or transfer the property.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

 The special circumstances do apply to the other properties in the immediate
vicinity. The purpose of the rezone on all the properties is to bring them into
closer conformance with the existing land use.

 The special circumstance does not apply to other properties not located in the
immediate vicinity which are properly zoned residential with residential land
uses.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

 The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to
other properties in the vicinity and will allow the continued historical use of the
property.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

 The granting of the variance is directly related to an improperly zoned property
and will not impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use
of the land or zoning classification.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 The property is fully developed as a residential use and the granting of the
variance will not impair natural resources.

FINDINGS

1. Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required
under Elko City Code 3-2-22. The proposed variance does not frustrate the goals and
policies of the Master Plan.

2. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan
is not required.

3. Approval of Variance 11-18 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 7-18 will bring the
property into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code.



VAR 11-18
Donald Carlson

Page 5 of 5

4. The special circumstance is directly related to the property being improperly zoned for
the developed use of the property.

5. The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the fact the property is
improperly zoned for the existing use of the property restricting the applicants ability to
improve upon and/or transfer the property.

6. The special circumstance does not generally apply to other properties to other properties
which are within a properly zoned residential district with residential land uses.

7. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity. The applicant is seeking the variance to address a fully
developed property with the use of the property as a residential use.

8. The granting of the variance is directly related to an improperly zoned property and will
not impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or
zoning classification.

9. The property is fully developed and the granting of the variance will not impair natural
resources.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Approval of rezone application 7-18.

2. Parcel map 10-18 is to be approved, recorded and all related conditions satisfied.





















HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC  640 Idaho Street 
Thomas C. Ballew  Elko, NV  89801 
Nevada P.L.S. 5072 page 1 of 1 (775) 738-4053 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Donald L. Carlson 
 

Application for Variance 
 

November 5, 2018 
 

A parcel of land located in Section 14, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.& M., City of 

Elko, Nevada, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the most southerly corner of Lot 13 of Block 12 as shown on the map of Ballou’s 

Addition to the Town of Elko, Nevada, filed in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as 

document number 2, being Corner No. 1, the True Point of Beginning; 

 

thence North 48°01’34” West, along the southwesterly boundary of said Lot 13, a distance of 

100.00 feet to Corner No. 2, being the most westerly corner of said Lot 13; 

thence North 41°58’33” East, along the northwesterly boundary of said Lot 13 and the 

northwesterly boundary of Lots 14, 15 and 16 as shown on said map of Ballou’s Addition to the Town of 

Elko, a distance of 88.00 feet to Corner No. 3; 

thence South 48°01’27” East, a distance of 48.00 feet to Corner No. 4; 

thence South 41°58’33” West, a distance of 13.00 feet to Corner No. 5, a point on the 

northeasterly boundary of said Lot 15; 

thence South 48°01’27” East, along the northeasterly boundary of said Lot 15, a distance of 52.00 

feet to Corner No. 6, being the most easterly corner of said Lot 15; 

thence South 41°58’33” West, along the southeasterly boundary of said Lots 15, 14 & 13, a 

distance of 75.00’ to Corner No. 1, the Point of Beginning. 

 

Said parcel contains an area of 8,124 square feet, more or less. 

 



Agenda Item # I.A.3 

Created on 6/19/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 12-18, filed by Donald 

Carlson to allow for an increase in maximum building area for an accessory 

structure, within an R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning 

District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
2. Meeting Date: December 4, 2018 

 
3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 
4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a variance for an increase in the 

maximum building area of an accessory structure from 1,000 sq. ft. to 1,200 sq. ft. in 

an R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning district. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve with the findings, facts and 

conditions listed in Staff Report dated November 19, 2018 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 19, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  High Desert Engineering 
640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

tcballew@frontiernet.net 

 

    Donald Carlson 

    1076 Court Street 

    Elko, NV 89801 

     

 

 

mailto:tcballew@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 6

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 19, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 12-18
APPLICANT: Donald Carlson
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 128 9th Street
RELATED APPLICATIONS: Rez 7-18, PM 10-18, & Var 11-18

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-5(E)(7), requiring a detached
accessory building shall be limited to a maximum area of 1,000 sq. ft. or ten percent of lot
area, whichever is greater, but not to exceed one thousand two hundred square feet (1,200
sq. ft.) in a R- Single Family Multiple Family Residential Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



VAR 12-18
Donald Carlson

Page 2 of 6

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-364-009 & 010

PARCEL SIZE: 4,224 sq. ft., 8,124 sq. ft. after combined with
approval of PM 10-18

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial; applied for a rezone to R-
Residential with REZ 7-18

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-DTWN) Mixed Use Downtown

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed land consistent with Residential uses

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

 Northwest: C- General Commercial  / Developed
 Northeast: R- Residential  / Developed as residential
 Southwest: GI – General Industrial  / Developed as commercial/industrial
 Southeast: GI- General Industrial / Developed as industrial

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The parcel is currently only developed with an accessory structure which projects into the
City of Elko right-of-way.

 The area is generally flat.
 The area is accessed from 9th Street and River Street as well as alley access.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22  Variances

BACKGROUND:

1. APN 001-364-009 & 10 are owned by Donald Carlson.
2. The applicant has applied for a parcel map to combine the two parcels.
3. The applicant has applied for a variance to address the front yard and exterior side yard

setbacks for the existing residence on the property.
4. The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing accessory structure on the property

with approval of this variance.
5. The area fronts 9th Street and River Street with alley access.
6. The properties are currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.



VAR 12-18
Donald Carlson

Page 3 of 6

MASTER PLAN - Land Use:

1. Land Use is shown as Mixed Use Downtown.
2. Supporting zone districts for Mixed Use Downtown are C- General Commercial.
3. The existing land use of the property is not consistent with the designated land use in the

Master Plan.
4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required under Elko
City Code 3-2-22. The proposed variance does not frustrate the goals and policies of the Master
Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

SECTION 3-2-5 RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT:

1. Under the property development standards for accessory uses:
a. Building Height: The maximum building height shall not exceed twenty

five feet (25’), or requirements contained within the city airport master
plan, whichever is the most restrictive.

b. Building Setbacks: Any detached accessory building that is erected shall
conform to front and side yard setback requirements. A minimum rear
yard setback of ten feet (10’) shall be required, which may be reduced to
zero feet (0’) if the rear lot line abuts a public alley.

c. Building Area: A detached accessory building shall be limited to a
maximum area of one thousand (1,000) square feet or ten percent (10%) of
the lot area, whichever is greater, but not to exceed one thousand two
hundred (1,200) square feet.

The property currently has a detached accessory building which is 248 square feet. The code
doesn’t state that the maximum allowed is a combination of all accessory structures, only per
structure. Under current code, they would be allowed to have the existing 248 sq. ft. structure
plus permit a 1,000 sq. ft. structure.  Due to the fact that the existing 248 sq. ft. structure is
partially in the City of Elko right-of-way, they are proposing to demolish it if the variance is
approved to gain that square footage within the new structure.

Approval of Variance 12-18 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 7-18 and Parcel Map 10-18
would be required in order for the property to be in conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City
Code.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.



VAR 12-18
Donald Carlson

Page 4 of 6

 The applicant is in the process of rezoning the property to correct the conflict
between the improper existing zone and the existing land use. During that process
is was discovered that the existing 248 sq. ft. storage shed encroaches onto city
right-of-way approximately one half foot (0.5). The shed will have to be removed
or a vacation approved to bring the property in compliance with proposed zone
change. Generally, vacation of alley ways are replaced in full area with an
easement for utilities and public access making the vacation process unlikely to be
approved. As currently provided for under the proposed zone amendment from
General Commercial to Residential, the owner would like to add an additional
1,000 sq. ft. of storage. The proposed district does not prohibit multiple accessory
building provided setback and separation requirements are met. Recognizing the
applicant’s efforts to address the existing legal non-conforming issues associated
with property, the applicant is requesting a variance to construct a 1,200 sq. ft. in
lieu of the allowed construction of a 1,000 sq. ft. garage. The single unit would
replace the loss of the existing storage.

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 The extraordinary condition is related the existing land use conflicting with the
existing zoning, the applicant’s efforts to address the issue ensuring the property
is a legal conforming use and as a result will be required to remove an existing
structure.

 The applicant has stated the code allows the construction of an additional 1,000
square foot garage and allows multiple detached structures. Other properties in the
area do not have the issue of having an existing shed which is partially located in
the alley right-of-way.

 The applicant stated that granting of the variance will allow the owner to develop
the property in accordance with the code while also correcting the situation of
having a portion of the existing improvements being within the alley right-of-way.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

 The applicant has stated that other properties in the area do not have the issue of
having an existing shed which is partially located in the alley right-of-way.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

 The applicant has stated that granting the variance will allow the elimination of a
structure which partially occupies the alley right-of-way and will allow use as
prescribed by code. Public safety will be increased by providing increased
distances between structures.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

 The applicant stated that the zone change has been applied for to bring the zone
into conformance with the existing land use.



VAR 12-18
Donald Carlson

Page 5 of 6

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 The applicant stated that no existing natural resources will be substantially
affected.

FINDINGS

1. Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required
under Elko City Code 3-2-22. The proposed variance does not frustrate the goals and
policies of the Master Plan.

2. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan
is not required.

3. Approval of Variance 11-18 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 7-18 and Parcel
Map 10-18 will bring the property into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code.

4. The special circumstance is directly related to the property having an existing accessory
structure located partially within the City of Elko right-of-way and the requirement for
the removal of the structure associated with rezoning the property to address conflicting
zoning and existing land use.

5. The special circumstance or extraordinary condition is related the existing land use
conflicting with the existing zoning, the applicant’s efforts to address the issue ensuring
the property is a legal conforming use and as a result will be required to remove an
existing structure.

6. The special circumstance of structure encroachment into right-of-way does not generally
apply to other properties within the proposed zone district.

7. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

8. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Approval of rezone application 7-18 and all conditions to be satisfied.

2. Parcel map 10-18 is to be approved, recorded and all related conditions satisfied.

3. Approval of variance 11-18 and all conditions to be satisfied.

4. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months from the
date of approval.

5. Plans to be submitted to the City of Elko Building Department for the accessory structure
and obtain all required permits.



VAR 12-18
Donald Carlson

Page 6 of 6

6. A demolition permit be obtained for the existing storage shed. Demolition
commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months from the
date of approval of variance 12-18.

7. All walls within 5 feet of property line are required to have a fire-resistance rating. This
shall be a 1 hour rating tested in accordance with ASTM E 119 or UL 263 with exposure
from both sides. The projection or roof overhang shall have a fire-resistance rating of 1
hour on the underside if located greater than 2 feet or less than 5 feet from the property
line. Roof projections or overhangs are not allowed within 2 feet of a property line.
Openings less than 3 feet to property line are not allowed. Openings up to 25% maximum
of wall area from 3 feet to 5 feet of property line are allowed. These requirements are as
per Table R302.1(1) 2009 International Residential Code. And table R302.1 of Elko city
amended building codes.



















HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC  640 Idaho Street 
Thomas C. Ballew  Elko, NV  89801 
Nevada P.L.S. 5072 page 1 of 1 (775) 738-4053 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Donald L. Carlson 
 

Application for Variance 
 

November 5, 2018 
 

A parcel of land located in Section 14, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.& M., City of 

Elko, Nevada, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the most southerly corner of Lot 13 of Block 12 as shown on the map of Ballou’s 

Addition to the Town of Elko, Nevada, filed in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as 

document number 2, being Corner No. 1, the True Point of Beginning; 

 

thence North 48°01’34” West, along the southwesterly boundary of said Lot 13, a distance of 

100.00 feet to Corner No. 2, being the most westerly corner of said Lot 13; 

thence North 41°58’33” East, along the northwesterly boundary of said Lot 13 and the 

northwesterly boundary of Lots 14, 15 and 16 as shown on said map of Ballou’s Addition to the Town of 

Elko, a distance of 88.00 feet to Corner No. 3; 

thence South 48°01’27” East, a distance of 48.00 feet to Corner No. 4; 

thence South 41°58’33” West, a distance of 13.00 feet to Corner No. 5, a point on the 

northeasterly boundary of said Lot 15; 

thence South 48°01’27” East, along the northeasterly boundary of said Lot 15, a distance of 52.00 

feet to Corner No. 6, being the most easterly corner of said Lot 15; 

thence South 41°58’33” West, along the southeasterly boundary of said Lots 15, 14 & 13, a 

distance of 75.00’ to Corner No. 1, the Point of Beginning. 

 

Said parcel contains an area of 8,124 square feet, more or less. 

 



Agenda Item # I.A.4 

Created on 6/19/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 13-18, filed by Valvet 

Carlson for a reduction of the required lot area from 5,000 sq. ft. to 4,376 sq. ft. in a 

R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, in conjunction 

with a zone change application, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 
2. Meeting Date: December 4, 2018 

 
3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 
4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a variance for the required 

minimum lot area for an existing parcel in conjunction with a rezone to R- Single 

Family and Multiple Family Residential. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve with the findings, facts and 

conditions listed in Staff Report dated November 19, 2018 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 19, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  High Desert Engineering 
640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

tcballew@frontiernet.net 

 

    Valvet Carlson 

    925 River Street 

    Elko, NV 89801 

     

 

 

mailto:tcballew@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 19, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.4
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 13-18
APPLICANT: Valvet Carlson
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 925 River Street
RELATED APPLICATIONS: Rez 7-18

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-5, requiring minimum lot area of
5,000 sq. ft. in an R- Single Family Multiple Family Residential Zoning District for an
existing platted subdivision characterized by twenty five foot (25’) wide lots.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



VAR 13-18
Valvet Carlson

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-364-011

PARCEL SIZE: 4,376 sq. ft.

EXISTING ZONING: GI- General Industrial; applied for a rezone to R-
Residential with REZ 7-18

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-DTWN) Mixed Use Downtown

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed land consistent with Residential uses

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

 Northwest: C- General Commercial  / Developed
 Northeast: R- Residential  / Developed as residential
 Southwest: GI – General Industrial  / Developed as commercial/industrial
 Southeast: GI- General Industrial / Developed as industrial

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The parcel is currently developed as a residential land use.
 The area is generally flat.
 The area is accessed from River Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22  Variances

BACKGROUND:

1. APN 001-364-011 is owned by Valvet Carlson.
2. The variance for minimum lot area requirements relates to the existing residence on APN

001-364-011.
3. The area fronts River Street.
4. The property is currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.

MASTER PLAN - Land Use:

1. Land Use is shown as Mixed Use Downtown.
2. Supporting zone districts for Mixed Use Downtown are C- General Commercial.
3. The existing land use of the property is not consistent with the designated land use in the

Master Plan.
4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of



VAR 13-18
Valvet Carlson

Page 3 of 5

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required under Elko
City Code 3-2-22. The proposed variance does not frustrate the goals and policies of the Master
Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

SECTION 3-2-5 RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT:

1. Under the property development standards for permitted principal uses:
a. Lot Area: For existing platted subdivisions characterized by twenty five

foot (25') wide lots and situated within a residential zoning district, any lot
or parcel reconfiguration or resubdivision shall adhere to a minimum lot
area of five thousand (5,000) square feet.

b. Lot Width: 60 ft.
c. Lot Depth: 100 ft.
d. Front yard Setback: 15 feet
e. Rear yard setback: 20 feet
f. Interior side yard setback: 5 ½ feet
g. Exterior side yard setback: 12 feet

Approval of Variance 13-18 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 7-18 will bring the property
into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

 The property is improperly zoned for the developed use of the property.
 The existing property is a unique shape and appears to have a portion of the

property lost at one time by boundary line adjustment with the neighboring
property

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 The property is improperly zoned for the developed use of the property.
 As currently developed there are no encroachments into setbacks.
 The applicant has requested to rezone the property to conform to the Master Plan

and existing use of the property.



VAR 13-18
Valvet Carlson

Page 4 of 5

 The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the fact the property is
improperly zoned for the existing use of the property restricting the applicants
ability to improve upon and/or transfer the property.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

 The special circumstances do apply to the other properties in the immediate
vicinity. The purpose of the rezone on all the properties is to bring them into
closer conformance with the existing land use.

 The special circumstance does not generally apply to other properties not located
in the immediate vicinity which are properly zoned residential with residential
land uses.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

 The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to
other properties in the vicinity and will allow the continued historical use of the
property.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

 The granting of the variance is directly related to an improperly zoned property
and will not impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use
of the land or zoning classification.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 The property is fully developed as a residential use and the granting of the
variance will not impair natural resources.

FINDINGS

1. Strict conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is not required
under Elko City Code 3-2-22. The proposed variance does not frustrate the goals and
policies of the Master Plan.

2. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan
is not required.

3. Approval of Variance 13-18 in conjunction with approval of Rezone 7-18 will bring the
property into conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City Code.

4. The special circumstance is directly related to the property being improperly zoned for
the developed use of the property.

5. The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the fact the property is
improperly zoned for the existing use of the property restricting the applicants ability to
improve upon and/or transfer the property.



VAR 13-18
Valvet Carlson

Page 5 of 5

6. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity. The applicant is seeking the variance to address a fully
developed property with the use of the property as a residential use.

7. The granting of the variance is directly related to an improperly zoned property and will
not impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or
zoning classification.

8. The property is fully developed and the granting of the variance will not impair natural
resources.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Approval of rezone application 7-18.





















Agenda Item # I.A.5 

Created on 11/20/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 5-18, filed 

by MP Elko, LLC, which would allow for a Public, Quasi-Public principal 

permitted use within a C (General Commercial) Zoning District, and matters 

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION  

 
2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 

 
3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: Within the C- General Commercial zoning district, all uses 

identified as principal permitted used in the public, quasi-public (PQP) district shall 

be required to first obtain a conditional use permit. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 5-18 

based on the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated 

November 20, 2018. 
 

9. Findings: See staff report dated November 20, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  MP Elko LLC. 

1801 Tiburon Blvd. Suite 800 

Tiburon, CA 94920 

dffinancial@sbcglobal.net 

 

Lana Carter 

lanalcarter@live.com 

  

 

mailto:dffinancial@sbcglobal.net
mailto:lanalcarter@live.com




Page 1 of 6

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: November 20, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I. A. 5
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 5-18
APPLICANT: MP Elko, LLC.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: PQP use within a C- General Commercial

Within the C general commercial zoning district, all uses identified as principal permitted uses in
the public, quasi-public (PQP) district shall be required to first obtain a conditional use permit

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 5-18
MP Elko, LLC
APN: 001-660-060

Page 2 of 6

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-660-60

PROPERTY SIZE: 8.59 acres

EXISTING ZONING: C –General Commercial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (COMM-HWY) Commercial Highway

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as the previous Kmart

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by Commercial zoned, developed and undeveloped land to the
north, east and west. It is frontage along I-80 corridor to the south.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently developed.
 The property is fairly flat.
 The property is accessed from Spruce Road and has frontage along I-80 corridor.
 The property is not in a flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-10 Commercial Zoning District
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

 The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
10(B)(6).

 There are no other conditional uses on the property.
 The property recently became vacant and MP Elko, LLC is in the process of purchasing

the property.
 The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Commercial Highway.
2. C- General Commercial is listed as a corresponding zoning district for Commercial



CUP 5-18
MP Elko, LLC
APN: 001-660-060

Page 3 of 6

Highway in the Master Plan Land Use.
3. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of

the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.
4. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation

1. The Master Plan identifies Spruce Road as Minor Arterial.
2. The site has pedestrian access along Mountain City Highway as well as Spruce Road.

Sidewalks are a necessary safety feature, particularly where children walk to and from the
facility.

3. The existing facility meets the goals listed in the Master Plan Transportation document as
Best Practice Objective 1; Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates
vehicle, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent
land uses.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan and
existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for City wells.

The conditional use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the



CUP 5-18
MP Elko, LLC
APN: 001-660-060

Page 4 of 6

right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed use is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in conformance with
ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-10(B).

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The proposed use is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4.

SECTION 3-2-10 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-10(B)(1) Public and quasi-public uses are listed as principal uses permitted.
2. Section 3-2-10(B)(6) Public, Quasi-Public: Within the C general commercial zoning

district, all uses identified as principal permitted uses in the public, quasi-public (PQP)
district shall be required to first obtain a conditional use permit pursuant to section 3-2-18
of this chapter.

3. Height Restrictions: All structures within the C general commercial zoning district must
comply with the height and other requirements of the current city airport master plan, to
the extent the plan applies to that location.

4. The property doesn’t abut a residential zone so therefore is not required to comply with
screen wall requirements set forth in subsection 3-2-3(J).

5. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code and
conditions for the CUP.

The proposed use is in conformance with the development standards of this section of code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

1. The applicant has stated in the application that 32 parking spaces are required based on 1
parking space for 6 students for Elementary Schools. A total of 40 standard parking spaces
and two van accessible parking spaces will be provided.

2. The applicant has stated in the application that a drop off pick up zone will be provided
independent of two way drive aisles. Two times a day they have 192 students that will
need to be dropped off and picked up. They estimate a 150 vehicle trips two times a day
with approximately 30 vehicles for staff each day.

3. Conformance with this section is required. The current facility is in conformance and will
be evaluated with plan submittal for the different proposed uses.

The proposed use conforms to section 3-2-17 of Elko city code.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:



CUP 5-18
MP Elko, LLC
APN: 001-660-060

Page 5 of 6

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The conditional use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

2. The conditional use is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master
Plan and existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan

4. The conditional use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

5. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit is required for the proposed use to be in
conformance to section 3-2-10 of the Elko city code.

6. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit is required for the proposed use to be in
conformance with sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, and 3-2-18 of the Elko city code.

7. The proposed use conforms to section 3-8 of Elko city code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 5-18 with the following conditions:

1. The permit is granted to the applicant MP Elko, LLC.



CUP 5-18
MP Elko, LLC
APN: 001-660-060

Page 6 of 6

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to
the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

3. The CUP 5-18 be approved for the building layout as shown in the provided site plan
Exhibit A.

4. CUP 5-18 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the
commencement of the expansion to the current facility.

5. All landscaping required by Elko City Code shall be maintained in a manner acceptable to
the City of Elko at all times by the property owner.

6. Signage will require a separate application with the Building Department and be subject to
Elko City Code 3-9.

7. Vehicular parking, of any type, including temporary parking for drop-off and pick-up shall
be prohibited along the Spruce Road frontage. The applicant shall be responsible for
installation of signs and curb face demarcation to fulfill the intent of this condition.

8. Install proper school zone speed limit signage and crosswalk markings as required.

9. NDOT approval of changes to the parking lot layout may be required.

10. Auto turn diagrams are required showing there are no conflicts between freight deliveries
and the school drop off and parking areas.

11. Student access to and from Spruce Road is prohibited at the south east access point to
Spruce Road. Student drop off and pick up is encouraged to ensure there are no
pedestrian/vehicle conflicts near the south east ingress/egress to the property. Students not
dropped off or picked up must utilize the pedestrian crossing at the Spruce Road and
Noddle Lane intersection.























SPRUCE RD
SIGNALIZED
INTERSECTION

M
TN. CITY HW

Y

INTERSTATE 80

Drive Thru 3400 sf

Drive Thru
2100 sf

PARCEL AREA

137.66'

55.87'

131.50'

32.20'

153.53'

157.48'

196.26'

17,596 sf =0.404 acres

patio

PARCEL AREA

20,760 sf =0.477 acres

trash

trash



VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

FRONT RENDERING

N.T.S.

HOME DEPOT

SIDE 1 RENDERING

N.T.S.

SIDE 2 RENDERING

N.T.S.

PETCO

WALMARTRALEYS

OLD KMART

BUILDING



Agenda Item # I.A.6 

Created on 11/20/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

8-18, filed by Koinonia Construction LLC, for a change in zoning from R1- Single 

Family Residential and R3- Multi Family Residential to R-Single Family and 

Multiple Family Residential, approximately 19.194 acres of property, FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The applicant would like to the zoning classification to be in 

conformance with the Master Plan for Copper Trails Phases 2-5. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 8-18 based on facts, findings and conditions 

as presented in Staff Report dated November 20, 2018. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 20, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Construction LLC 

207 Brookwood Dr. 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

Carter Engineering 
lanacarter@live.com 

 

 

 

 

mailto:tcballew@frontiernet.net




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: November 20, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
APPLICATION NUMBER: REZONE 8-18
APPLICANT: Koinonia Construction LLC on behalf of Copper

Trails LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zone amendment associated with the subdivision

of property and development under an
Agreement to Develop Land.

ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS: Preliminary Plat 13-18 and Ordinance 838 – An
Amendment to Development Agreement

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 8-18
Copper Trails LLC
APN: 001-610-114

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-114

PARCEL SIZE: 19.194 acres

EXISTING ZONING: Approximately 7.91 acres as R3 and approximately
11.284 as R1

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: General Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
 West: General Agriculture (AG) and Residential (R) / Undeveloped
 South: Single Family Residential (R1) / Developed
 East: General Agriculture (AG) and Residential (R) / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area is generally flat to moderately sloping.
 The area is accessed from the intersection of Copper Street and Mittry Avenue.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. The property is owned by Copper Trails LLC.
2. The application has been filed by Koinonia Construction LLC on behalf of Copper Trails

LLC. A letter of authorization for the filing is on file with the planning department.
3. The rezone includes all of APN 001-610-114.
4. The area fronts Copper Street.



REZONE 8-18
Copper Trails LLC
APN: 001-610-114

Page 3 of 5

5. City utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.
6. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.
7. The application for rezone is based on an application for subdivision of property and the

amendment of an agreement to develop land. As such the rezone application must comply
with section 3-3-5(A) – Zoning Amendments.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. Supporting zone districts for Medium Density Residential are Single Family/Multi

Family (R), Single Family (R1), Two Family (R2), Planned Unit Development (PUD),
Residential Office (RO), Residential Business (RB), Mobile Home Subdivision (RMH-
2), and Manufactured Home Subdivision (RMH-3).

3. Zone classification of the properties are required to conform to the Master Plan.
4. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community’s image.
5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from the intersection of Copper Street and Mittry Avenue.
2. Both streets are classified as Residential Collectors.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. A small portion located in the south corner of the property is located within the 30 year
capture zones for several municipal wells. Residential development under the proposed
zone district will require complete street development including storm water control,
require connection to a programmed sewer system and therefore will not pose a hazard to
municipal wells.

The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with wellhead protection
plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally



REZONE 8-18
Copper Trails LLC
APN: 001-610-114

Page 4 of 5

altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-5 – Single Family / Multi-Family Residential

1. The existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-5 for minimum area,
minimum lot width, front and rear yard setbacks, side yard setback and maximum
building height.

2. The existing development is consistent with the listed principal uses permitted.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5 (E) and (G).

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

SECTION 3-3-5

1. Zone amendments submitted and processed in conjunction with a preliminary plat are
usually limited to the area proposed for subdivision. In this case the proposed zone
district is not only related to the proposed subdivision but is related to a proposed
amendment of an agreement to develop land established by ordinance and the master plan
for the area contained in the agreement.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).

FINDINGS:



REZONE 8-18
Copper Trails LLC
APN: 001-610-114

Page 5 of 5

1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5 (E) and
(G).

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).

9. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).

10. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

11. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be approved as presented.

























Agenda Item # I.A.7 

Created on 4/18/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review and consideration of Preliminary Plat No. 13-18, filed by Koinonia 

Construction LLC., for the development of a subdivision entitled Copper Trails 

Phase 2 involving the proposed division of approximately 19.194 acres of property 

into 29 lots and a remainder parcel for residential development within the R (Single 

Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related 

thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located northwest of the intersection of 

Copper Street and Mittry Avenue.  (APN 001-610-114) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Recommend to City Council to conditionally approve 

Preliminary Plat 13-18 based on facts, findings and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated November 21, 2018. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 21, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:   Koinonia Construction LLC 
207 Brookwood Dr. 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

Carter Engineering 

P.O. Box 794 

Elko, NV 89803 





Page 1 of 17

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 21, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.7
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 13-18
APPLICANT: Koinonia Construction, LLC
RELATED APPLICATIONS: Rezone 8-18

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 19.194 acres of property into
29 lots and one remainder parcel for residential development within an R1 (Single Family
Residential) Zoning District

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to CONDITIONALLY APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions
stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 2 of 17

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-610-114

PARCEL SIZE: 19.194 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single Family Residential & (R3) Multiple
Family Residential pending approval of Rezone
application 8-18 to (R) Single Family and Multiple
Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RM) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is bordered by:

 Northwest: Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
 Northeast: Agriculture  (AG) / Undeveloped
 Southwest: Residential (R) / Developed
 Southeast: Residential (R) / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently undeveloped and moderately sloping throughout the area.
 The property can be accessed from Copper Street.

MASTER PLAN:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Airport Master Plan
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report - November
2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3-3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5, Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 3 of 17

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. The property owner is Copper Trails LLC. Koinonia Construction has written
authorization from the owner to file the application on its behalf.

2. The area proposed for subdivision is identified as APN 001-610-114.
3. The area is undeveloped.
4. The area is located east of Copper Street and the intersection of Mittry Avenue.
5. The area proposed for subdivision is a continuation of the Copper Trails subdivision.
6. A Stage 1 meeting for the proposed subdivision was on March 1, 2018. A second Stage 1

meeting was held on March 19, 2018 where a revised subdivision was proposed.
7. The area proposed for subdivision and additional area is incorporated into an Agreement

to Develop Land (Ordinance 755). The agreement was amended by Ordinance 769. The
agreement contains stipulations providing for additional amendments to include the area
proposed for subdivision and provide for development under the provisions included in
the agreement. The layout of the subdivision is based on development standards
stipulated in the agreement (i.e. lot widths are 50 feet vs. 60 feet).

8. The area proposed for subdivision is located within the R1-Single Family Residential
zone district and R3 – Multi-Family Residential.

9. The applicant has applied for a zone amendment to R- Single Family and Multiple
Family Residential which will presented to Planning Commission on December 4, 2018.

10. The total area is approximately 19.194 acres in size. The Tentative Map includes 5.139
acres to be subdivided into lots. A remainder lot of 14.055 acres will remain for future
development.

11. The Tentative Map shows a total of 29 lots with one remainder. The proposed density is
approximately 5.64 units per acre.

12. Phasing of the subdivision is proposed with three phases. Unit 1 will consist of nine lots.
Unit two will consist of ten lots. Unit 3 will consist of ten lots.

13. Approximately 1.117 acres are being offered for dedication. The dedication includes
Mittry Avenue, Platinum Drive and Quartz Drive.

14. Copper Street was developed on the north side to a point beyond the Mittry Avenue and
Copper Street intersection as a condition of Copper Trails Phase 1 development. The
termination of the improvements was based on the intent to develop the remainder of the
right-of-way as a parking area to support a future linear park in the 8 Mile drainage.

15. The proposed subdivision is located down gradient of the 8 mile dam spill way. There are
no local nor state restrictions on the development of the area under this circumstance.

16. The applicant has applied for a grading permit for this property.

MASTER PLAN

Land use:

1. The land use is shown as Medium Density Residential. Medium Density is identified as
having a density of 5 - 8 units per acre.

2. The proposed change in zoning classification to R-Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential is listed as a corresponding district for the Medium Density Designation in
the Master Plan.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use component states “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors”.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 4 of 17

4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states “Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

o Best Practice 1.1 – Single Family – The proposed subdivision meets several of the
methods described to achieve a diverse mix of single family homes in the
community.

o Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land use component of the Master Plan states “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems, or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.” Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems and
no issue with regard to human health and safety.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Copper Street and Mittry Avenue (when developed).

2. Copper Street and Mittry Avenue are classified as Residential Collector roadways.

3. The Master Plan recommends a right of way width of 60 feet for a Residential Collector
and 50 feet for a Residential Local.

4. The proposed streets, Platinum Drive and Quartz Drive, will function as local residential
streets.

5. Upon full build out of Phase 2, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate
approximately 277.53 Average Daily Trips based on 9.57 trips/townhome (Source ITE
trip Generation, 8th Edition). Ingress/Egress to the subdivision will be Mittry Avenue to
Copper Street.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LANDUSE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2102

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and
Annexation Potential Report - November 2012.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 5 of 17

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. A small portion of the property is located within the 30 year capture zone for City of Elko
wells.

2. The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system and all street drainage
will report to a storm sewer system.

The proposed subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead Protection
Program.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II)

Tentative Map 3-3-5(A) –A zoning amendment is required due to the amendment to the
development agreement to include the remainder lot. The remainder lot has dual zoning of R1
and R3. The proposed zoning of R from R1 doesn’t change the design or requirements of the
subdivision. As mentioned above, development standards are also addressed in the Agreement to
Develop Land.

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or public sewage disposal
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated water
consumption of the subdivision. The City of Elko Utility Department will be
required to submit a “Tentative Will Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada. The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots. The
required commitment for water service for the proposed subdivision is
approximately 32.48 acre feet of water per year. The required peak hour
commitment for water service for the proposed subdivision is approximately 37.7
gpm. Current City wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total
allocated amount.

 Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the exiting water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 6 of 17

 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation and parks.

 Schools, Fire and Police and Recreational Services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinances and the City’s master plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s master plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The Master Plan Land Use Map shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
The proposed subdivision and development have been designed in accordance
with the existing zoning although a zoning amendment has been requested to
change the zoning to R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.

 The result is a density of 5.6 units per acre which meets the minimum density 4
units per acre specified in the Master Plan.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City’s Master Plan as well
as Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s master plan of streets and highways.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component
of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 278 Average
Daily Trips to Copper Street. Based on the threshold of 1000 ADT referenced in
the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope and soil

 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is
expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report dated November 12, 2018 was submitted with the application
in support of the storm drain design.

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments of those entities and persons reviewing the tentative
map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 7 of 17

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL

Identification Data (B)(1) – The subdivision name, location and section, township and range,
with reference by dimension and bearing to a section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown
on Sheet 1.

Identification Data (B)(2) – The name, address, and telephone number of the subdivider is
shown on Sheet 1. The email address is not shown.

Identification Data (B)(3) – The engineer’s name, address and telephone number is shown on
Sheet 1. The email address is not shown.

Identification Data (B)(4) – The scale is shown on Sheet 1.

Identification Data (B)(5) – The north point is shown on Sheet 1.

Identification Data (B)(6) – The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent
revisions are shown on Sheet 1.

Identification Data (B)(7) – A location map is shown on Sheet 1.

Identification Data (B)(8) – A legal description is provided on Sheet 1.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(1) – A topographic map is shown on Sheet 6. The proposed
grading plan shows 12 to 15’ slopes along the rear lot line of Lots 4-6, 10-14, and 20-24.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(2) – There are no streams, ditches or washes directing storm
water onto the property.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(3) – There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed
subdivision. The regulatory floodway for 8 Mile Creek, adjacent to the subdivision, is shown on
Sheet 2.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(4) – Sheet 1 of the Map identifies all the roadways, easements
and corporate limits within and adjacent to the tract.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(5) – Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the
map.

Physical Conditions Data (C)(6) – Gross and net acreage of subdivision is shown on Sheet 1.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(1) – The proposed street layout is
shown. All the streets are named and proposed for dedication. The grades of the proposed streets



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 8 of 17

are shown on the grading plan. The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(2) – The lot layout with consecutively
numbered lots is shown. The area and dimensions for each lot are shown and the total number of
lots.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(3) – Typical easements will be
required along all lot lines. A description of the easements are shown on Sheet 1. An easement
for the extension of the Eight Mile spillway is required.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(4) – The required information for
street dedication is on Sheet 1.

Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data (F)(5) – A zone change is proposed for the
entire parcel. Application 8-18 will be heard by the Planning Commission on December 4, 2018
for the zoning amendment.

Proposed Deed Restrictions (G) – There are no CC & R’s proposed for the subdivision.

Preliminary Grading Plan (H) – A grading plan with estimated quantities is shown on Sheet 4.
A permit for mass grading of the property has been initiated.

NPDES Permit Compliance (I) – The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of
Elko’s storm water regulations.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(1) – Sheet 3 shows the proposed sewage
disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(2) – Sheet 3 shows the proposed water
supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(3) – The Tentative Map shows storm water
infrastructure. The design was based on a hydrology report dated November 12, 2018.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(4) – Utilities in addition to City utilities must
be provided with civil improvements plans required for final Map submittal.

Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements (J)(5) – The City will not require a traffic impact
study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.

C. Land suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed
development based on the findings in this report.

The proposed subdivision is in general conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 9 of 17

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision embraces portions of Copper Street.
No other streets require Mapping to conform to any traffic plans.

B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is required.

C. Extensions: The extension of Copper Street to the intersection of Mittry Ave. is required
as part of the proposed subdivision.

D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets prevents outside traffic
from utilizing the neighborhood for cut through traffic.

E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are lots abutting Copper Street which is
classified as a Residential Collector. The lots will be restricted with no access to Copper
Street.

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.

G. Topography: The residential streets have been designed to address the topography of the
area.

H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.

I. Half Streets: Copper Street is proposed to be a half street until development occurs on the
East side.

J. Dead End Streets: There are no dead end streets proposed.

K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersection with Copper Street and Mittry Ave. is
code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right of Way Widths:

a. Mittry Avenue; Residential Street – 50 feet. The proposed right-of-way width for
Mittry Avenue is 50 feet.

b. Platinum Drive; Residential Street: 50 feet. The proposed right-of-way width for
Platinum Drive is 50 feet.

c. Quartz Drive; Residential Street: 50 feet. The proposed right-of-way width for
Quartz Drive is 50 feet.

d. Copper Street; Residential Collector: 60 feet. The proposed right-of-way width
for Copper Street is 80 feet.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.

C. Vertical Curves: The vertical curves are code compliant.

D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the streets and intersection



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 10 of 17

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: Pedestrian ways are not proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning and reductions allowed with the approved development
agreement. All lots will have improved frontage.

B. Lot Depth: The lots are in conformance with the stipulated lot depth allowed under
Exhibit D in the approved Development Agreement. All lots have fronts at least 40 feet in
width.

C. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Exhibit D of the approved Development Agreement.

D. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are substantially at right angles to the street lines.
Deviations occur on inside curves and are appropriate.

E. Accessibility: Every lot abuts a proposed public street.

F. Prohibitions: Lots 1, 2 & 3 are double frontage lots. Those lots access will be limited to
the proposed local street.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the approval
of Lots 1, 2, & 3 as double front lots abutting Copper Street and access restricted to Platinum
Drive and Quartz Drive.

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: Note 13 on the Tentative Map specifies side and rear lot line
easements of 5 feet. This equates to a total easement width of 10 feet. Overhead utilities
are not allowed within the subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Note 13 on the Tentative Map specifies side and rear lot line
easements of 5 feet. This equates to a total easement width of 10 feet. Overhead utilities
are not allowed within the subdivision. The utility companies, at their discretion, may
request a wider easement on the rear lot line. The proposed side lot line easements
conform to code.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets. Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.

D. Public Drainage Easement. There are no public drainage easements offered for
dedication.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 11 of 17

E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation:
There are no areas offered for dedication that would not be included in minimum lot area
in the Phase 2 area. Area for a drainage easement located within the remainder lot is
offered for dedication.

F. Lots Backing On To Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which back onto an
arterial street.

G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the streets.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

The subdivider has proposed street names. The street name does not duplicate other streets.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with presentation of civil improvements plans.

SECTIONS 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive)

All the referenced sections are applicable to final Map submission, approval and construction of
civil improvement plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-3-25 MODIFICATION OF STANDARDS:

1. Section 3-3-13(F) - Lots 1, 2, & 3 are approved as double fronts lots with access
restricted to Platinum Drive for lots 2 & 3 and Quartz Drive for lot 1.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as "principal uses
permitted" in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 12 of 17

low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety and general welfare of the community. The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based. The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw
the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

3. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection:

4. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision with the approved development agreement is in conformance with
Section 3-2-4 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-5(B) R1 Single Family Residential:

1. Section 3-2-5(E)(2). Principal Uses Permitted:

a. Adult care facility which serves ten (10) or fewer.
b. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein

service to district residents requires location within the district.
c. Multiple-family residential units, including a duplex, triplex, or a fourplex located

on a single lot or parcel, provided area and setback requirements are met.
d. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with

each dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback
requirements are met.

e. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.
f. Residential facility for groups of ten (10) or fewer.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G)

1. Lot areas are shown. All the Lots meet the minimum area requirements as stipulated in
the approved Development Agreement Exhibit D.

2. Lot dimensions are shown and are in conformance with the approved Development
Agreement Exhibit D.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code with the approved Development Agreeement.

SECTION 3-2-17



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 13 of 17

1. The proposed roadways are classified as a residential street in accordance with the Master
Plan.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking to be
located outside the front and interior side yards.

3. Access for Lot 1, 2, & 3 is restricted to Platinum Drive for lots 2 & 3 and Quartz Drive
for lot 1. A note on the Final Map is required.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17. Conformance
with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with section 3-8 of City code.

TITLE 9 CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.

GENERAL COMMENTS

1. A Hydrology Report is on file for this area.

2. A soils report is required with the final Map submittal.

3. A complete set of civil improvement plans will be required with the final Map.

OTHER

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. Storm water general permit, required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view showing
the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and
a copy of the certified confirmation letter.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required in the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five acres. A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.

4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.

5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.

6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans from the individual utility companies
before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use
component of the Master Plan.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 14 of 17

2. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan.

3. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development
Feasibility, Land use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report - November 2012.

5. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

6. The proposed subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead
Protection Program. The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system
and all street drainage will report to a storm sewer system.

7. A zoning amendment is required due to the amendment to the development agreement to
include the remainder lot which has dual zoning of R1 and R3. The proposed zoning of R
from R1 doesn’t change the design or requirements of the subdivision.

8. In accordance with section 3-3-5(E)(2) the proposed subdivision and development will
not result in undue water or air pollution based on the following:

a. There are no obvious considerations are concerns which indicate the proposed
subdivision would not be in conformance with all applicable environmental and
health laws and regulations

b. There is adequate capacity within the City’s water supply to accommodate the
proposed subdivision.

c. The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the exiting water supply.

d. There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the
proposed subdivision and development.

e. The proposed subdivision and development will be connected to the City’s
programmed sanitary sewer system therefore the ability of soils to support waste
disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval.

f. Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

g. Schools, Fire and Police and Recreational Services are available throughout the
community.

h. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance applicable zoning
ordinances and is general conformance with the Master Plan based on the
constraints of establishing reasonable grades for roadways, lot grading and slope
maintenance.

i. The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 15 of 17

congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

j. The area is not located within a designated flood zone. Concentrated storm water
runoff has been addressed as shown on the grading plan.

k. The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

9. The proposed subdivision submittal in in conformance with Section 3-3-6 of City code
with the following exception:

 Email address is not shown for subdivider or engineer. This is not a significant
deficiency.

10. The proposed subdivision is in general conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

11. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

12. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

13. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

14. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the
approval of Lots 1, 2 & 3 as double front lots and access restricted to Platinum Drive for
Lots 2 & 3 and Quartz Drive for Lot 1.

15. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

16. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

17. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City
code.

18. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City
code.

19. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

20. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of
City code with the approved Development Agreement.

21. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

22. The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood
hazard area and is in conformance with section 3-8 of City code.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 16 of 17

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS:

1. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

2. Planning Commission recommendation for approval of zone amendment 8-18 in
conjunction with hearing of the tentative plat application.

3. City Council approval of the proposed zone amendment is required prior to City Council
approval of the Tentative Map.

4. City Council approval of the amendment to the approved Development Agreement to
include Phase 2 is required prior to City Council approval of the tentative map.

5. Tentative map approval constitutes authorization for the sub-divider to proceed with
preparation of the final map and associated construction plans.

6. Tentative map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements, with the exception of authorized grading, prior to approval of the
construction plans by the City and the State.

7. The applicant submits an application for final map within a period of four (4) years in
accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a). Approval of the tentative map will automatically
lapse at that time.

8. A soils report is required with final map submittal.

9. Final map construction plans improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

10. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Chapter 9-8 of City code.

11. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to serve letter.

12. A note shall be added to the final map restricting the access for Lots 2 & 3 limited to
Platinum Drive and Lot 1 to be limited to Quartz Drive.

13. A modification from standards for full road improvements on Copper Street shall be
approved by the City Council.

14. Revise the tentative map to show a drainage easement for the extension of the Eight Mile
spillway prior to City Council consideration of the tentative map.

15. Address comments in the staff letter dated November 21, 2018.



TENTATIVE MAP 13-18
Copper Trails Phase 2
APN: 001-610-114

Page 17 of 17



































LOT 1
7006 SQ FT

LOT 2
8172 SQ FT

LOT 3
14228 SQ FT

LOT 4
12433 SQ FT

LOT 5
8540 SQ FT

LOT 6
6320 SQ FT

LOT 7
5550 SQ FT

LOT 8
6288 SQ FT

LOT 9
5991 SQ FT

LOT 10
7812 SQ FT

LOT 11
7101 SQ FT

LOT 12
6339 SQ FT

LOT 13
5783 SQ FT

LOT 14
4750 SQ FT

LOT 15
4663 SQ FT

LOT 16
4090 SQ FT

LOT 17
4118 SQ FT LOT 18

5374 SQ FT LOT 19
5129 SQ FT

LOT 20
5225 SQ FT

LOT 21
4940 SQ FT

LOT 22
4750 SQ FT

LOT 23
4750 SQ FT

LOT 24
5415 SQ FT

LOT 25
4090 SQ FT

LOT 26
4090 SQ FT

LOT 27
4090 SQ FT

LOT 28
4090 SQ FT

LOT 29
4090 SQ FT

EL
KO

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 L
LC

14.055 AC
REMAINDER LOT 

EL
KO

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

01
-2

01
8

20
18

-0
2

LL
C

LL
C

11
-1

3-
18

1"=30'
N/A

1

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, L

LC
C

O
PP

ER
 T

R
AI

LS
 P

H
AS

E 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 - 
LA

YO
U

T

11-13-18

(775) 397-2531

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
P.O. BOX 794

CONTACT: LANA L. CARTER, P.E.

CARTER ENGINEERING, LLC

1. ZONING: R1 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R3 -
MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.  PENDING ZONE CHANGE TO
R - SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR
ENTIRE 19.194 ACRES (PARCEL G OF FILE NUMBER 748288).

2. APN = 001-610-114

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTION = PARCEL G OF FILE NUMBER 748288, IN THE
OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER.

4.  TOTAL AREA  PARCEL AREA IS 19.194 ACRES.  TOTAL AREA OF PHASE 2
IS 5.139 ACRES.

5.  29 LOTS TOTAL WITH ONE REMAINDER LOT.

6.  NO DEED RESTRICTIONS.

7. NO ADDRESS ASSIGNED TO THE PARCEL.

7.  PARCEL TO BE SUBDIVIDED IS IN LOCATED IN SECTION 9
OF TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST M.D.B.& M.

8. SUBDIVISION TO BE SERVED BY THE FOLLOWING UTILITY COMPANIES
CITY OF ELKO - WATER, SEWER & STORM DRAIN
SW GAS - NATURAL GAS
FRONTIER - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEPHONE
NV ENERGY - ELECTRICAL
SATVIEW BROAD BAND - COMMUNICATIONS AND TELEVISION
ELKO SANITATION - WASTE DISPOSAL

LANA L. CARTER, P.E.

I, LANA L. CARTER, A REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL CIVIL ENGINEER IN THE STATE
OF NEVADA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS
PRELIMINARY PLAT HAS BEEN PREPARED
UNDER MY DIRECTION AND WAS COMPLETED
ON THE 13TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019.

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
207 BROOKWOOD DRIVE

CONTACT: LUKE FITZGERALD

KOINONIA CONSTRUCTION, LLC

(775) 303-8492

6

9. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE X (AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD
HAZARD) PER FEMA FIRM MAP 32007C5606E EFFECTIVE 9-4-13

10. THE ESTIMATED SANITARY SEWER CONTRIBUTION IS 350 GPD/LOT.  29
LOTS x 350 GPD/LOT =  10,150.00 GPD.

11. THE ESTIMATED WATER DEMAND IS 1.12 AC-FT/YEAR/LOT.
29 LOTS x 1.12 AC-FT/YEAR/LOT = 32.48 AC-FT/YEAR.

12.. TOTAL GROSS ACREAGE  PHASE 2     5.139 ACRES

TOTAL RIGHT OF WAY  ACREAGE
       OFFERED FOR DEDICATION

EAGLE RIDGE LOOP   1.117 ACRES

TOTAL NET ACREAGE                            4.022 ACRES

13. IN ADDITION TO THE EASEMENTS SHOWN A 7.5' WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY AND
DRAINAGE EASEMENT IS PROVIDED ALONG ALL STREET FRONT LOT
LINES AND A 5.0' WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT IS
PROVIDED ALONG ALL SIDE AND REAR LOT LINES.

14. ON SITE MITTRY AVENUE, PLATINUM DRIVE AND QUARTZ DRIVE ARE
PROPOSED TO BE LOCAL RESIDENTIAL STREETS.

15. CURB RETURN RADIUS SHALL BE 20' FEET WITH ACCESSIBLE CURB
RAMPS.

16. TEMPORARY 50' RADIUS ALL WEATHER TURN AROUND SHALL BE
PROVIDED A THE END OF EACH UNIT UNTIL NEXT UNIT IS CONSTRUCTED. INTERSTATE 80

ROLLING HILLS DR

FOREST LANE

NORTH 5TH STREET

NTS

DAKOTA D
R

SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST

COPPER TRAILS, LLC



COPPER TRAILS UNIT 2
FILE NO. 731523

EL
KO

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 L
LC

FI
LE

 N
O

. 6
12

84
0

C
ITY O

F ELKO
 PAR

C
EL 1

FILE N
O

. 530053

CITY OF ELKO PARCEL 1
FILE NO. 530053

GRACE BAPTIST CHURCH
FILE NO. 646026

FILE NO. 669764
COPPER TRAILS 

COPPER TRAILS 
FILE NO. 685463 FILE NO. 685187 FILE NO. 685167

8 MILE CREEK
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

ZO
N

E 
R

 - 
R

ES
ID

EN
TA

IL

ZONE A - AGRICULTURAL

ZO
N

E A - AG
R

IC
U

LTU
R

AL

ZONE R - RESIDENTIAL

ZONE R1 - SINGLE FAMILY
ZONE R1 - SINGLE FAMILY

ZONE R1 - SINGLE FAMILY

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

14.055 AC
REMAINDER LOT 

EL
KO

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 L
LC

FI
LE

 N
O

. 6
12

84
1

ZO
N

E 
R

 - 
R

ES
ID

EN
TA

IL

SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

01
-2

01
8

20
18

-0
2

LL
C

LL
C

11
-1

3-
18

1"=50'
N/A

2

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, L

LC
C

O
PP

ER
 T

R
AI

LS
 P

H
AS

E 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 - 
O

VE
R

AL
L 

LA
YO

U
T

11-13-18

6

COPPER TRAILS PHASE 2



SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

01
-2

01
8

20
18

-0
2

LL
C

LL
C

11
-1

3-
18

1"=30'
N/A

3

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, L

LC
C

O
PP

ER
 T

R
AI

LS
 P

H
AS

E 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 - 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

6

1. ALL WATER MAINS SHALL BE AWWA C90O, DR 18 WATER PIPE.

2. ALL WATER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE 1" IPS 200 PSI POLYETHYLENE.

3. ALL WATER LINE FITTINGS SHALL BE DUCTILE IRON.

4. ALL WATER LINES SHALL BE PLACED WITH 42" OF MINIMUM COVER.

5. ALL METERS SHALL BE 1 INCH.

6. ALL NEW FIRE HYDRANTS WILL BE EQUIPPED WITH STORZ FITTINGS.

7. A MINIMUM OF 1 FOOT SEPARATION WILL BE ALLOWED BETWEEN WATER
TAPS.

8. A MINIMUM OF 2 FOOT SEPARATION WILL BE ALLOWED BETWEEN WATER
TAPS AND HYDRANT TAPS.

9. WATER AND SEWER LATERALS WILL BE PLACED IN SEPARATE TRENCHES
AND LOCATED AT LEAST 48" APART MEASURE FROM OUTSIDE DIAMETERS.

10. HOT TAPS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY THE CITY OF ELKO UTILITIES
DEPARTMENT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY TRENCH AND MATERIALS
FOR THE HOT TAP.  IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO
COORDINATE THIS WORK WITH THE CITY OF ELKO.

11. WATER SERVICE FOR LOT 1 SHALL BE FROM LIVE LINE IN MITTRY AVENUE.

1. ALL SEWER LINES SHALL BE SDR-35 P.V.C.

2. IN NO CASE SHALL A LATERAL CONNECT TO THE SEWER MAIN DIRECTLY ON
THE TOP OF THE PIPE.

3. SEWER LATERALS TO BE 4" Ø AND SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 2% FOR
100-FEET.

1. ALL STORM DRAIN LINES SHALL BE ADS N-12 WT OR APPROVED EQUAL.

11-13-18



SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

01
-2

01
8

20
18

-0
2

LL
C

LL
C

11
-1

3-
18

1"=30'
N/A

4

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, L

LC
C

O
PP

ER
 T

R
AI

LS
 P

H
AS

E 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 - 
G

R
AD

IN
G

11-13-18

6

1. THE ESTIMATED EARTHWORK QUANTITIES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION = 29,660 CY CUT
UNCLASSIFIED EMBANKMENT = 21,925 CY FILL

THE ABOVE QUANTITIES ARE BANK CUBIC YARDS WITH A 3-INCH
GRUB.   SHRINK OR SWELL HAS NOT BEEN CONSIDERED.

2. ADD 5000 FEET TO SPOT ELEVATIONS.

3. THE FINAL GRADING OF THE LOTS WILL BE DONE TO ELIMINATE
CROSS LOT DRAINAGE.

4. SLOPES ADJACENT TO STREETS SHALL NOT EXCEED 3:1.

5. INTERIOR SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2:1.

6. THIS PROJECT REQUIRES EXPORT EXCAVATION.  THE OWNER
AGREES TO SUBMIT GRADING PLANS FOR THESE  SITES  AS THESE
LOCATIONS ARE MADE KNOWN.

7. THE EXISTING GROUND TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM
A SURVEY PROVIDED BY HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING ON 8-15-18.

8. FINAL GRADING SHALL ELIMINATE CROSS LOT DRAINAGE BY DRAINING
DOWN LOT LINES.



SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

01
-2

01
8

20
18

-0
2

LL
C

LL
C

11
-1

3-
18

1"=30'
N/A

5

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, L

LC
C

O
PP

ER
 T

R
AI

LS
 P

H
AS

E 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 - 
C

U
T 

AN
D

 F
IL

L

11-13-18

6

1. THE ESTIMATED EARTHWORK QUANTITIES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION = 126,160 CY CUT
UNCLASSIFIED EMBANKMENT = 68,612 CY FILL

THE ABOVE QUANTITIES ARE BANK CUBIC YARDS WITH A 3-INCH
GRUB.   SHRINK OR SWELL HAS NOT BEEN CONSIDERED.

2. ADD 5000 FEET TO SPOT ELEVATIONS.

3. THE FINAL GRADING OF THE LOTS WILL BE DONE TO ELIMINATE
CROSS LOT DRAINAGE.

4. SLOPES ADJACENT TO STREETS SHALL NOT EXCEED 3:1.

5. INTERIOR SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2:1.

6. THIS PROJECT REQUIRES EXPORT EXCAVATION.  THE OWNER
AGREES TO SUBMIT GRADING PLANS FOR THESE  SITES  AS THESE
LOCATIONS ARE MADE KNOWN.

7. THE EXISTING GROUND TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM
A SURVEY PROVIDED BY HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING ON 8-15-18.



SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

01
-2

01
8

20
18

-0
2

LL
C

LL
C

11
-1

3-
18

1"=30'
N/A

6

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, L

LC
C

O
PP

ER
 T

R
AI

LS
 P

H
AS

E 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 - 
ER

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L

11-13-18

6

1. ALL BMPs BASED ON CITY OF ELKO CONSTRUCTION SITE BEST
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES HANDBOOK.

2.   EC-4 AND EC-5 SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED TO CONTROL DUST.

3. DURING CONSTRUCTION TEMPORARY DIVERSION DIKES AND DITCHES
(RC-2) WILL BE USED INSTEAD OF FIBER ROLLS (SC-1).  FIBER ROLLS
WILL BE INSTALLED AFTER SLOPE CONSTRUCTION AT THE TOE OF THE
SLOPE.

4. ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE REVEGITATED PER (EC-8) IF NOT
LANDSCAPED.



Agenda Item # I.B.1. 

Created on 11/16/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 2-18, filed by A.M. Engineering LLC., for the vacation of a portion of 

D Street and W. Cedar Street right-of-way abutting APN 001-143-001, consisting of 

an area approximately 2,467.89 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The existing non-conforming parking is within the City of 

Elko right-of-way. The property has been vacant for more than 12 months and has 

lost all legal non-conforming status. Without the vacation, the use of the property 

would be severely compromised. CL 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which conditionally approves Vacation No. 2-18 based on facts, findings 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated November 20, 2018. 
 

9. Findings:  See Staff Report dated November 20, 2018. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  A.M. Engineering  
445 5th Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 20, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: IB.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Vacation 2-18
APPLICANT: A.M. Engineering
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-143-001

Vacation of a portion of D Street and a portion of Cedar Street right-of-way to allow for
parking for 742 D. Street professional office building.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact, conditions and waivers.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VACATION 2-18
A.M. Engineering
APN: 001-143-001

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-143-001

PARCEL SIZE: 9,662 sq. ft.

EXISTING ZONING: (C) General Commercial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed, Professional Office Building

BACKGROUND:

1. A.M. Engineering owns the property.
2. The property has been vacant for more than 12 months, therefore, any legal non-

conforming uses are invalid.
3. The property is fully developed with a professional office building.
4. The City Council accepted the petition for vacation at its November 13, 2018 meeting.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

North: Residential / Developed
East: Commercial / Developed
South: Commercial / Developed
West: Residential / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

1. The property is currently developed.
2. The property has been vacant for more than 12 months and has lost any legal non-

conforming use.
3. The property access is off of D Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive
City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
City of Elko Code – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
City of Elko Code – Section 3-2-10 General Commercial Zoning District
City of Elko Code – Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures



VACATION 2-18
A.M. Engineering
APN: 001-143-001

Page 3 of 5

NRS 278.479 to 278.480 inclusive

1. 278.480(4) If any right-of-way or easement required for a public purpose that is owned
by a city or a county is proposed to be vacated, the governing body, or the planning
commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if authorized to take final action by the
governing body, shall, not less than 10 business days before the public hearing described
in subsection 5.

2. NRS 278.480 (5) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, if, upon public hearing,
the governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if
authorized to take final action by the governing body, is satisfied that the public will not
be materially injured by the proposed vacation, it shall order the street or easement
vacated. The governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other
designee, if authorized to take final action by the governing body, may make the order
conditional, and the order becomes effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed. An applicant or other person aggrieved by the decision of the planning
commission, hearing examiner or other designee may appeal the decision in accordance
with the ordinance adopted pursuant to NRS 278.31895.

3. Per NRS 278.480(6) Public utility companies have been notified of the vacation on
November 14, 2018.

4. It does not appear that there are any City utilities located within the area proposed to be
vacated.

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. C- General Commercial Zoning District is not listed as a corresponding zoning district

for Medium Density.
3. Strict conformance with the Master Plan Land Use is not required for a vacation under

Section 8-7.
4. The Master Plan was adopted after the property was developed and therefore is in error

concerning the land use designation as Medium Density Residential.
5. The existing land use doesn’t create a significant impact on traffic or other surrounding

uses.

Strict conformance with the Master Plan under section 8-7 is not required. The vacation and
commercial land use is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from D Street.
2. Existing roadway width is not modified with the vacation.
3. D Street is identified as a Commercial Collector. The function of D Street is not

consistent with this classification in the Master Plan Transportation component as
the traffic counts are less.

4. Cedar Street is identified as a Residential Collector.
5. Remaining right-of-way for D Street is 69.18‘and Cedar Street is 72.24‘.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

The area proposed for vacation is located outside the Redevelopment Area.



VACATION 2-18
A.M. Engineering
APN: 001-143-001

Page 4 of 5

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

The area proposed for vacation will be merged with the adjacent property. The existing zone
district, C- General Commercial, does not stipulate a minimum lot area requirement. The
vacation will add area to the lot of record.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 3-2-10 COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS

1. The area proposed for vacation will be merged with the adjacent property. The merged
area meets requirements stipulated in code.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-10 of City code.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 8-7 STREET VACATION PROCEDURES

1. The proposed vacation is being processed independent of the proposed development of
the property.

2. A 7.5 foot wide utility easement is required on the proposed West Cedar Street and D.
Street alignment and shall be included in the City Council order vacating the right-of-
way.

The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City code.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

2. Strict conformance with the Master Plan under section 8-7 is not required. The vacation
and commercial land use is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity.

3. The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component

4. The area proposed for vacation is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

5. The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

6. The proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code 3-2-10(B).

7. The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section
8-7 of City code.

8. The proposed vacation will not materially injure the public and is in the best interest of
the City.



VACATION 2-18
A.M. Engineering
APN: 001-143-001

Page 5 of 5

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution which
conditionally APPROVES the proposed vacation with the following conditions:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the vacation.
2. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard to

the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.

























EX SS
EX SS

EX W
L

E
X

 
W

L

E
X

 
W

L

E
X

 
W

L

E
X

 
W

L

E
X

 
W

L

E
X

 
W

L

EX WL

E

X

 
W

L

EX WL

EX WL

EX WL

EX WL

EX WL

EX WL

EX WL

E

X

 

S

S

E

X

 

S

S

E

X

 

S

S

EX SS

EX SS

EX SS

EX SS

EX SS

EX SS

EX SS

E

X

 

S

S

E
X

 
S

S
E

X
 
S

S
E

X
 
S

S
E

X
 
S

S
E

X
 
S

S

N
4

1
°
4

9
'
0

0
"
E

8
8

.
4

5
'

N

5
4
°
5
7
'0

0
"
W

1
2
2
.8

7
'

L
=

3
2
.
2

9

,

R
=

2
8

8
.
5

7

D
=

6
.
4
1
1
6

L
=

2

3

.

5

6

,

R

=

1

5

.

0

0

D

=

9

0

.

0

0

0

0

EX WL

S48°11'00"E

105.01'

S
4

1
°
4

9
'
0

0
"
W

2
6
.
7
6
'

L
=

7
1
.
1
6

,
R

=
3

4
0
.
5

0

D
=
1
1
.
9

7
4

5

L

=

2

4

.

5

2

,

R

=

1

5

.

5

0

D

=

9

0

.

6

3

8

2

N48°11'00"W

112.25'

S
4

1
°
4

9
'
0

0
"
W

1
3
.
8
9
'

S
5
4
°
5
7
'0

0
"
E

1
2
.4

4
'

No.  21636

12-31-19

PR
OF
ES
SI
ON
AL
 EN

GINEER - STATE OF NEVADA

4
4

5
 
5

T
H

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

0
1

E
L

K
O

,
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
 
8

9
8

0
1

T
E

L
:
 
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

 
-
 
3

1
1

3

F
A

X
:
 
 
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

 
-
 
6

1
9

9

W
W

W
.
A

M
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
.
P

R
O

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CHECKED BY:

JOB NO.:

·
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

·
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

·
Q

A
 
/
 
Q

C
 
I
N

S
P

E
C

T
I
O

N
S

·
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
I
N

G

·
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L
S

 
T

E
S

T
I
N

G

A
.
M

.
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

7
4
2
 
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

T
E

N
A

N
T

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

R
O

W
 
V

A
C

A
T

I
O

N
 
E

X
I
B

I
T

E
L

K
O

E
L

K
O

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

C4

AUGUST 2018

RSR

AKM

AKM

E
N

G
IN

E
E
R

IN
G

EX PROPERTY BOUNDARY

EX PROPERTY

BOUNDARY

REQUESTED AREA

OF VACATION

2467.89 SF

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OCCUPANCY LANDSCAPING

1

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
E

L
K

O
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S

AREA OF VACATION PARKING ANALYSIS

IBC 2009 SEC. 601 & 602

1

1

1

REMAINING ROW

R
E

M
A

I
N

I
N

G
 
R

O
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-143-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
D STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF = 5082

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exp.%%u        %%u

AutoCAD SHX Text
AARON K. MARTINEZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE ATTACHED DOCUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCCUPANCY     BUSINESS AREAS BUSINESS AREAS FLOOR AREA PER OCCUPANT  100 SQ FT (GROSS) 100 SQ FT (GROSS) BUILDING SQ FT    3,926.22 3,926.22 OCCUPANT LOAD    39.2 (40)39.2 (40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-2-10: PC, C COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS (2) LANDSCAPING LANDSCAPING a. FOR EVERY NEW CONSTRUCTION IN THE C GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT WHICH IS OUTSIDE OF THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (CBD), FOR EVERY NEW CONSTRUCTION IN THE C GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT WHICH IS OUTSIDE OF THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (CBD), MINIMUM LANDSCAPE AREA SHALL BE PROVIDED IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) OF THE SURFACE AREA OF THE DEVELOPED PORTION OF THE PROPERTY FOR LOT SIZES ONE ACRE OR GREATER AND TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE SURFACE AREA OF THE DEVELOPED PORTION OF THE PROPERTY FOR LOT SIZES SMALLER THAN ONE ACRE, TO INCLUDE PROPERTY CONSISTING OF MULTIPLE PARCELS WHICH FORM A SINGLE DEVELOPMENT. ADDITIONALLY, THE CITY MAY, AT ITS DISCRETION, REQUIRE THAT LANDSCAPED AREAS BE DISTRIBUTED THROUGHOUT THE DEVELOPMENT, INCLUDING YARD AREAS BETWEEN BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND THE ADJACENT STREET RIGHT OF WAY LINE. THE LANDSCAPING MAY INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, SCREEN PLANTING, LAWNS, TREES, SHRUBS, FENCES AND WALLS. DROUGHT TOLERANT, LOW MAINTENANCE SPECIES, IN CONJUNCTION WITH DECORATIVE HARD SURFACE MATERIALS SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, VOLCANIC ROCK, GRAVEL OR STONE, ARE ENCOURAGED AND MAY, WHERE APPROPRIATE, BE UTILIZED TO FULFILL LANDSCAPE SURFACE REQUIREMENTS. STREET FRONTAGE LF     207.25 207.25 2 1/2 SQ FT PER LF     518.13 518.13 EXISTING LANDSCAPING SQ FT       1,845.68     1,845.681,845.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA			2467.89 SF2467.89 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SQ FT    3,926.22 3,926.22 UNUSABLE SQ FT     ,449.09  ,449.09 USABLE SQ FT     3,477.13 3,477.13 REQUIRED PARKING SPACES  1212

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION CLASSIFICATION					TYPE IIITYPE III





Agenda Item # I.B.2 

Created on 11/06/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review and consideration of Site Plan Review No. 2-18, filed by The State of 

Nevada for approval of the location of an accessory building in the PQP (Public, 

Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The subject property is located generally on the northwest 

side of Idaho Street, approximately 450’ northeast of Convention Drive. (1951 Idaho 

Street – APN 001-560-002) 

 
6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 
7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Report, Application  

 
8. Recommended Motion: Approve Site Plan Review No. 2-18 subject to the findings of 

fact listed in the Staff Report dated November 6, 2018. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 6, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Nevada, State of 
Attn: Robert Nicholas 

RNicholas@dot.nv.gov 

1263 South Stewart Street 

Carson City, NV 89712 

 

Stantec 

John J Welsh, PE 

john.welsh@stantec.com 

6995 Sierra Center Parkway 

Reno, NV 89511-2213 

mailto:RNicholas@dot.nv.gov
mailto:john.welsh@stantec.com




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: November 6, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I. B.2
APPLICATION NUMBER: Site Plan Review 2-18
APPLICANT: State of Nevada
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Expansion of existing facility

A site plan review for the expansion of the current State of Nevada Department of
Transportation facility with the addition of an accessory building in the northeast corner of
the parcel for the NDOT communication and storm water personnel.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



SPR 2-18
State of Nevada
APN: 001-560-002

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-560-002

PROPERTY SIZE: 14.31 acres

EXISTING ZONING: PQP –Public, Quasi, Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Public

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as the current State of Nevada
Department of Transportation facility

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by developed land to the north, south, east and west. It is
surrounded by properties zoned PQP, Public, Quasi-Public to the west and south, Commercial to
the east and Residential to the north.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently developed.
 The property is fairly flat
 The property is accessed from Idaho Street
 The property is not in the flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public District
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

 The application for the Site Plan Review was filed as required under City Code 3-2-8 (E).
 All accessory structures whether attached or detached, shall be located in accordance with

location on the lot as approved by the Planning Commission.
 The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.



SPR 2-18
State of Nevada
APN: 001-560-002

Page 3 of 5

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public.
2. PQP- Public, Quasi-Public is listed as a corresponding zoning district for Public in the

Master Plan Land Use.
3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public and

quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities. Uses
of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies.

4. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed development is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component

Transportation

1. The Master Plan identifies Idaho Street as a Principal Arterial.
2. The site has pedestrian access along Idaho Street as well as Convention Drive.
3. The proposed accessory structure will not increase existing traffic counts.

The proposed development is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component
and existing transportation infrastructure

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

 The property is located in the 2-year capture zone for City wells. Development will be
required to conform to the Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. It does not appear that the
proposed use will have a negative impact on the 2 year capture zone. The issue will be
addressed within the plan review process.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

 Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.



SPR 2-18
State of Nevada
APN: 001-560-002

Page 4 of 5

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed development is required to have an approval of the proposed accessory structure to
be in conformance with ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-8(E).

SECTION 3-2-8 PQP PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT

1. The intent of the district is to accommodate public or quasi-public institutional uses.

2. Section 3-2-8(E) Property Development Standards for Accessory Buildings:

 Maximum Height: Regulations applicable to the principal building shall apply.

 Location: Accessory buildings, whether attached or detached, shall be located in
accordance with location on the lot as approved by the Planning Commission.

The proposed development conforms to the development standards of this section of code 3-2-8
for accessory structures.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

1. Conformance with this section is required.
2. The current facility is in conformance with standard parking as well as ADA stalls.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master
Plan

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan

3. The site is suitable for the proposed use.



SPR 2-18
State of Nevada
APN: 001-560-002

Page 5 of 5

4. The proposed expansion of the development is required to conform to the City Wellhead
Protection Program.

5. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
6. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-8 PQP, Public-Quasi, Public with

the approval of the location for the accessory structure.
7. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-17, and 3-8 of the Elko City

Code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL for the location of the modular building as an accessory use in
the PQP district as determined under this site plan review application.











0

Scale Feet
1" = 20'

20' 10' 20'

N

w
w

w
.st

an
te

c.
co

m

69
95

 S
ie

rra
 C

en
te

r P
ar

kw
ay

Re
no

, N
V 

89
51

1

Permit-Seal

Drawing No.

C
lie

nt
/P

ro
je

ct

Sheet
of

Project Number: 181710270

Revision

NE
VA

DA
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
O

F 
TR

AN
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
EL

KO
 M

O
DU

LA
R

Re
no

, N
ev

ad
a

9V:
\1

81
7\

ac
tiv

e\
18

17
10

27
0\

ci
vil

\d
ra

w
in

gs
\s

he
et

s\
10

27
0_

Elk
o-

M
od

ul
ar

_S
P.

dw
g

20
18

/1
0/

18
 3

:2
0 

PM B
y:

 Sc
ot

t, 
Th

om
as

Th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

or
 sh

al
l v

er
ify

 a
nd

 b
e 

re
sp

on
sib

le
 fo

r a
ll d

im
en

sio
ns

. D
O

 N
O

T s
ca

le
th

e 
dr

aw
in

g 
- a

ny
 e

rro
rs 

or
 o

m
iss

io
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 S

ta
nt

ec
 w

ith
ou

t d
el

ay
.

Th
e 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
s t

o 
al

l d
es

ig
ns

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 a

re
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f S
ta

nt
ec

. R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
or

 u
se

 fo
r a

ny
 p

ur
po

se
 o

th
er

 th
an

 th
at

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
St

an
te

c 
is 

fo
rb

id
de

n.
I
s
s
u

e
d

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
R

E
V

I
E

W

By
Re

vis
io

n
Ap

pd
.

YY
.M

M
.D

D

NO
TE

S,
 LE

G
EN

D,
 S

HE
ET

 IN
DE

X,
 A

ND
 A

BB
RE

VI
AT

IO
NS

SP-1

0 2

Chkd.Dwn. Dsgn. YY.MM.DD

File Name: 10270_ELKO-MODULAR_SP.DWG

DL JW JW 18.10.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH 6100 RIM = 5090.20 I.E. OUT = 5086.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH 6101 RIM = 5090.20 I.E. IN = 5086.77 I.E. OUT = 5082.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH 6102 RIM = 5090.10 I.E. OUT = 5082.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRINDER PUMP LIFT STATION DETAILS 1-2 SHEET D-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LOCATION OF EX. 4" LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OIL/WATER SEPARATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  LATERAL TO CONNECT WITHMODULAR WASTE PLUMBING TO INLET WELL. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION SPECIFIED ON MODULAR PLUMBING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT NEW 1" WATER SERVICE TO EX. 8" WATER DETAIL 5 SHEET D-1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"  WATERSERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"  WATER SERVICETO CONNECTION AT  MODULAR PLUMBING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. F.H. TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MAINTENANCE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MAINTENANCE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SD CATCH BASIN RIM = 5089.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP EX. GAS AND REROUTE 81 LF AROUND BLDG FOOTPRINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARDS DETAIL 1 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.E. OUT = 5086.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT ±350 LFOF 2" SS FORCE MAIN, SEE PP-1 FOR VERTICAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE IN TO EX 4" LATERAL LOCATION & ELEVATION UNKNOWN DETAIL 6 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT ±360 LFOF 4" SS OVERFLOW, SEE PP-1 FOR VERTICAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL 1" VALVE DETAIL 7 SHEET D-1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT STATION ELECTRICAL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR RELEASE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PCC VALLEY GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PCC VALLEY GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP EX. GAS AND REROUTE 81 LF AROUND BLDG FOOTPRINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"  SS OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"  SS FORCE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL 1" WATER METER DETAIL 11 SHEET D-1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 EXISTING 12/240V, 200 AMP, SINGLE PHASE PANEL FED FROM A SECOND EXISTING 12/240V, 200 AMP, SINGLE PHASE PANEL FED FROM A SECOND BREAKER LABELED "SHOP" LOCATED IN THE MAIN SWITCHGEAR. THE ELECTRICAL FEED FROM THE OVERHEAD IS TO BE DISCONNECTED AND FED FROM THE NEW SWITCHGEAR (ITEM X). 2 EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TO REMAIN. EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TO REMAIN. 3 EXISTING COMM. PANEL TO REMAIN. PROVIDE UNDERGROUND CONDUIT TO EXISTING COMM. PANEL TO REMAIN. PROVIDE UNDERGROUND CONDUIT TO NEW MODULAR (ITEM X). 4 EXISTING DOOR TO BE INSTALLED WITH NO HEADER. PROVIDE NEW HEADER EXISTING DOOR TO BE INSTALLED WITH NO HEADER. PROVIDE NEW HEADER IN EXISTING CMU WALL. 5 SITE NEW MODULAR, 24' x 60', TYPE V-B, OCCUPANCY B, SITE NEW MODULAR, 24' x 60', TYPE V-B, OCCUPANCY B, NON-SPRINKLERED. MODULAR TO BE PROVIDED BY OWNER. 6 NEW 120/240V. 3 PHASE, 800 AMP ELECTRIC SERVICE FED FROM NEW 120/240V. 3 PHASE, 800 AMP ELECTRIC SERVICE FED FROM EXISTING OVERHEAD ELEC. (ITEM 2), PROVIDE TRANSFORMER AND SWITCHGEAR TO FEED EXISTING PANEL (ITEM 1) AND NEW MODULAR (ITEM 6). SERVICE TO NEW MODULAR IS SINGLE PHASE, 200 AMP, 120/240V AC.  7 CONTRACTOR SHALL POTHOLE AND LOCATE EXISTING 4"  WASTELINE FROM CONTRACTOR SHALL POTHOLE AND LOCATE EXISTING 4"  WASTELINE FROMSEPARATOR. 8) CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WATER AND WASTE CONNECTIONS WITH CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WATER AND WASTE CONNECTIONS WITH MODULAR PLUMBING

AutoCAD SHX Text
811/1-800-227-2600

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL         TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
USA

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Appd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
YY.MM.DD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI D



∅

∅

∅

∅

0

SCALE FEET
1" = 20'

20' 10' 20'

N

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE FEET
1" = 20'

20' 10' 20'

0

VERTICAL SCALE FEET
1" = 2'

2' 1' 2'

w
w

w
.st

an
te

c.
co

m

69
95

 S
ie

rra
 C

en
te

r P
ar

kw
ay

Re
no

, N
V 

89
51

1

Permit-Seal

Drawing No.

C
lie

nt
/P

ro
je

ct

Sheet
of

Project Number: 181710270

Revision

NE
VA

DA
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
O

F 
TR

AN
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
EL

KO
 M

O
DU

LA
R

Re
no

, N
ev

ad
a

9V:
\1

81
7\

ac
tiv

e\
18

17
10

27
0\

ci
vil

\d
ra

w
in

gs
\s

he
et

s\
10

27
0_

Elk
o-

M
od

ul
ar

_S
P.

dw
g

20
18

/1
0/

18
 3

:2
0 

PM B
y:

 Sc
ot

t, 
Th

om
as

Th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

or
 sh

al
l v

er
ify

 a
nd

 b
e 

re
sp

on
sib

le
 fo

r a
ll d

im
en

sio
ns

. D
O

 N
O

T s
ca

le
th

e 
dr

aw
in

g 
- a

ny
 e

rro
rs 

or
 o

m
iss

io
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 S

ta
nt

ec
 w

ith
ou

t d
el

ay
.

Th
e 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
s t

o 
al

l d
es

ig
ns

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 a

re
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f S
ta

nt
ec

. R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
or

 u
se

 fo
r a

ny
 p

ur
po

se
 o

th
er

 th
an

 th
at

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
St

an
te

c 
is 

fo
rb

id
de

n.
I
s
s
u

e
d

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
R

E
V

I
E

W

By
Re

vis
io

n
Ap

pd
.

YY
.M

M
.D

D

SE
W

ER
 M

AI
N 

PL
AN

 A
ND

 P
RO

FIL
E

PP-1

0 3

Chkd.Dwn. Dsgn. YY.MM.DD

File Name: 10270_ELKO-MODULAR_SP.DWG

HZ JW JW 18.10.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TB

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"  HDPE SS FORCE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"  WATER SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRINDER LIFT STATION DETAILS 1 & 2 SHEET D-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND 3"  LATERAL ON THEUNDERSIDE OF MOODULAR TO CONNECT WITH MODULAR WASTE PLUMBING TO INLET WELL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CLEANOUT ON EX. LATERAL 5' OFFSET FROM PR. CONNECTION DETAIL 10 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT DETAIL 10 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT DETAIL 10 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT DETAIL 10 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EX LATERAL DETAIL 6 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR RELEASE VALVE DETAIL 8 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. F.H. TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. F.H. TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"  SDR 35 PVCSS OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT VG & REPLACE OVER TRENCH MINIMUM 2' BEYOND TRENCH WIDTH EACH SIDE. MATCH EXISTING THICKNESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATED GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTION TO MODULAR IE: 5089

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EX LATERAL LOCATION & ELEV. UNKNOWN DETAIL 6 SHEET D-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STORM DRAIN UTILITY CROSSING LOCATION & ELEVATION UNKNOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MAIN CROSSING LOCATION & ELEVATION UNKNOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
811/1-800-227-2600

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL         TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
USA

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Appd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
YY.MM.DD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI D



w
w

w
.st

an
te

c.
co

m

69
95

 S
ie

rra
 C

en
te

r P
ar

kw
ay

Re
no

, N
V 

89
51

1

Permit-Seal

Drawing No.

C
lie

nt
/P

ro
je

ct

Sheet
of

Project Number: 181710270

Revision

NE
VA

DA
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
O

F 
TR

AN
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
EL

KO
 M

O
DU

LA
R

Re
no

, N
ev

ad
a

9V:
\1

81
7\

ac
tiv

e\
18

17
10

27
0\

ci
vil

\d
ra

w
in

gs
\s

he
et

s\
10

27
0_

Elk
o-

M
od

ul
ar

_S
T.d

w
g

20
18

/1
0/

18
 3

:2
1 

PM B
y:

 Sc
ot

t, 
Th

om
as

Th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

or
 sh

al
l v

er
ify

 a
nd

 b
e 

re
sp

on
sib

le
 fo

r a
ll d

im
en

sio
ns

. D
O

 N
O

T s
ca

le
th

e 
dr

aw
in

g 
- a

ny
 e

rro
rs 

or
 o

m
iss

io
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 S

ta
nt

ec
 w

ith
ou

t d
el

ay
.

Th
e 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
s t

o 
al

l d
es

ig
ns

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 a

re
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f S
ta

nt
ec

. R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
or

 u
se

 fo
r a

ny
 p

ur
po

se
 o

th
er

 th
an

 th
at

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
St

an
te

c 
is 

fo
rb

id
de

n.
I
s
s
u

e
d

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
R

E
V

I
E

W

By
Re

vis
io

n
Ap

pd
.

YY
.M

M
.D

D

ST
RI

PI
NG

 P
LA

N

ST-1

0 8

Chkd.Dwn. Dsgn. YY.MM.DD

File Name: 10270_ELKO-MODULAR_ST.DWG

HZ JW JW 18.10.03

0

Scale Feet
1" = 5'

5' 2.5' 5'

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL "HANDICAPPED PARKING" SIGN, SEE DETAIL 1/ST-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE SOLID WHITE STRIPING, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE SOLID YELLOW STRIPING, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF PAVEMENT MODIFICATION FOR ADA ACCESSIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL "HANDICAPPED ACCESS AISLE" SIGN, SEE DETAIL 2/ST-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE HANDICAP PARKING SYMBOL (TRAFFIC PAINT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
811/1-800-227-2600

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL         TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
USA

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Appd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
YY.MM.DD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI D



MGohres
Working Stamp



MGohres
Working Stamp



MGohres
Working Stamp



MGohres
Working Stamp



MGohres
Working Stamp



MGohres
Working Stamp



Agenda Item # I.B.3. 

Created on 4/18/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible granting of Parking Waiver 2-18, filed by 

Charm Hospitality, LLC to waive fourteen required off-street parking spaces in 

connection with a hotel expansion within the C (General Commercial) Zoning 

District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: MISC. ITEMS, PETITIONS and COMMUNICATIONS  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located at 3019 Idaho Street. (APN 001-

560-089) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to grant Parking Waiver 2-18 subject to findings of fact 

in the Staff Report dated November 8, 2018. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated November 8, 2018 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:   Charm Hospitality 

3019 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 





Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: November 14, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
APPLICATION NUMBER: PKG 2-18
AGENDA ITEM: I.B.3.
APPLICANT: Charm Hospitality, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Parking Waiver 2-18

An application for a parking waiver reducing to 106 parking spaces from the required 120
spaces associated with a proposed expansion of the existing hotel. There are currently 110
spaces.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Parking Waiver 2-18
Charm Hospitality, LLC
APN: 001-560-089

Page 2 of 4

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-560-089

PARCEL SIZE: 1.954 acres

EXISTING ZONING: C- General Commercial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (COMM-HWY) Commercial Highway

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as a Hotel

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: General Commercial (C) / Developed
 West: I-80 Corridor
 South: General Commercial (C) / Developed
 East: General Commercial (C) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently developed with a commercial land use.
 The area is generally flat with steep grade change from back of existing building to the I-

80 right-of-way
 The area is accessed from Idaho Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-10 PC, C Commercial Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

BACKGROUND:

1. The applicant is the property owner.
2. The applicant has submitted a set of plans for an expansion to the existing building to the

City of Elko Building Department.
3. The proposed addition will result in approximately 4,126 sq. ft. added to the structure.

The proposed addition includes a swimming pool, commercial laundry, guest laundry,
meeting room, and fitness center, typical amenities for the existing use.

4. A parking waiver was granted by the Planning Commission on June 5, 2018 for a
reduction to 110 spaces from the required 121.  The owner has since redesigned the
proposed addition and eliminated square footage from the restaurant area reducing the
required stalls to 120 as well as eliminated another 4 stalls with the proposed re-design of
the site allowing for better fire department access. This new waiver would replace the
PKG 1-18 waiver that was previously approved.



Parking Waiver 2-18
Charm Hospitality, LLC
APN: 001-560-089

Page 3 of 4

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Commercial Highway.
2. C- General Commercial zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for

Commercial Highway.
3. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of

the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.
4. The existing facility as well as the proposed addition meet Objective 6 of the Land Use

document.

The existing use and proposed expansion are in conformance with the Land use Component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Idaho Street.
2. West Idaho Street is classified as a Major Arterial.

The existing use and proposed use is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The parcel is within a 2 year capture zone. The existing and proposed use does not pose a
hazard to the City wells.

The existing use and proposed use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTION 3-2-10(B) – General Commercial District –C:

1. The existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-10 for minimum area,
minimum lot width, front and rear yard setbacks, side yard setback and maximum
building height.

2. The existing development is consistent with the listed principal uses permitted.
3. The existing development does not abut a residential zoning district therefore; a

conditional use permit is not required.

The existing use and proposed use is in conformance with Section 3-2-10 of city code.

SECTION 3-2-17:

1. The intent of 3-2-17 is to secure optimum coordination and interaction between land use
and transportation facilities. Preservation and improvement of the traffic function of
abutting streets, and of the major street system as a whole, are essential considerations in
the project planning stage of land development. It is the purpose of this section to
establish the regulations necessary to assure that every land use will be so located and
planned as to minimize traffic congestion, hazards and vehicular pedestrian conflicts. It is



Parking Waiver 2-18
Charm Hospitality, LLC
APN: 001-560-089

Page 4 of 4

the further purpose to place upon the property owner the primary responsibility for
relieving public streets of the burden of on street parking and to provide the regulations
and minimum standards essential to the planning and development of adequate off street
parking.

2. Section 3-2-17(C): In all zoning districts, off street parking facilities must be provided in
accordance with the provisions of this section for: 1) buildings, establishments or uses of
land established after the effective date of this amendment, i.e., June 12, 2002; and 2)
existing buildings, establishments or uses of land which are extended, enlarged or altered
after the effective date of this amendment.

3. The applicant has provided a parking analysis stating for the hotel at 1 per guestroom =
77, 1 per 2 employees for hotel = 2, restaurant 1 per 100 sq. ft. of dining = 7, 1 per each 2
employees = 2, meeting space 1 per 24 sq. ft. of unfixed seating space = 32 for a total
required of 120.

4. Section 3-2-17(E) describes the methods for compliance with off street parking.
5. Section 3-2-17(E)(4) allows for the Planning Commission to waive all or a portion of the

required off street parking provided the waiver does not conflict with the intent of the
code. The waiver application also requires notification of adjacent properties and
provides for an appeal of the Planning Commission decision to the City Council.

6. Some amenities may be utilized by others outside the use of the facility.
7. The applicant has stated that the peak hours for the meeting rooms are during the day and

hotel is evening through the night so there is not a conflict with the principal use which is
the hotel.

8. The applicant has stated that the full service restaurant is generally an amenity to the
hotel guests although it will be open to the public.

9. The existing development appears to meet all other requirements in 3-2-17 for
landscaping, site lighting and trash enclosure.

The proposed expansion includes amenities that are typically associated with the existing use and
is not expected to generate additional traffic resulting in a parking deficit.

FINDINGS:

1. The existing use and proposed expansion are in conformance with the Land use
Component of the Master Plan.

2. The existing use and proposed use is compatible with the Transportation Component of
the Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.

4. The existing use and proposed use is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan.

5. The existing use and proposed use is in conformance with Section 3-2-10 of City Code.

6. The proposed expansion includes amenities that are typically associated with the existing
use and is not expected to generate additional traffic resulting in a parking deficit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the parking waiver be granted.



























Agenda Item # I.B.4 

Created on 11/16/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 3-18, filed by Joy Global Surface Mining Inc., for the vacation of 

approximately 751.83 feet of the westerly portion of P & H drive right-of-way, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The applicant proposes to merge all of the parcels by parcel 

map application consolidating them into one parcel. By vacating the proposed 

portion of P & H Drive, it would allow them to facilitate the use of their property 

without a dedicated right-of-way bisecting their property. CL 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which conditionally approves Vacation No. 3-18 based on facts, findings 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated November 20, 2018. 
 

9. Findings:  See Staff Report dated November 20, 2018. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution: Michael McClanahan 
Joy Global Surfacing Mining Inc. 

4400 West National Avenue  

Milwaukee, WI 53214 

michael.mcclanahan@mining.komatsu 

 
Legend Engineering 
Lonny Reed 

52 West 100 North 

Heber City, UT 84032 

lonny@legendenginnering.com  

mailto:michael.mcclanahan@mining.komatsu
mailto:lonny@legendenginnering.com




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: November 20, 2018
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: December 4, 2018
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.4
APPLICATION NUMBER: Vacation 3-18
APPLICANT: Joy Global Surface Mining Inc.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 4450 P & H Drive

Vacation of a portion P & H Drive in conjunction with a parcel map to combine parcels.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact, conditions and waivers.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VACATION 3-18
Joy Global Surface Mining
APN: 001-679-014

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-679-014, 001-679-016 & 001-679-015

PARCEL SIZE: 30.857 acres.

EXISTING ZONING: (LI) Light Industrial

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (IND-BS PARK) Industrial Business Park

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed on 001-679-014 and proposed
development on 001-679-016 & 001-679-015 is in
the permitting process with the City of Elko

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

North: Light Industrial / Developed
East: General Agriculture / Undeveloped
South: General Agriculture / Undeveloped
West: Elko County Property / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

1. The property is partially developed on APN 001-679-014 and undeveloped on 001-679-
015 & 016.

2. The property can be accessed from P & H Drive as well as West Idaho Street.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive
City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
City of Elko Code – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
City of Elko Code – Section 3-2-12 Light Industrial Zoning District
City of Elko Code – Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

BACKGROUND:

1. All three parcels were annexed into the City of Elko by Ordinance 830 on May 8, 2018.
2. Joy Global Surface Mining parent company, Harnischfeger Corporation, purchased APN

001-679-014 on December 6, 1999.
3. APN’s 001-679-015 & 016 were purchased by Komatsu Equipment Company on

September 28, 2018. They are in the process of deeding the property to the parent
company, Harnischfeger Corporation, in order to merge the parcels.

4. All three parcels were rezoned to Light Industrial concurrent with the annexation.
5. APN 001-679-014 has been developed as an industrial use.



VACATION 3-18
Joy Global Surface Mining
APN: 001-679-014

Page 3 of 5

6. A new industrial use facility is proposed and is currently under the permitting process.
The new facility would be located on APNs 001-679-015 & 016.

7. As a condition for approval of the proposed development, the parcels will be merged. As
a result, the dedicated right-of-way to serve multiple parcels has been reduced.

8. The property owner has presented a deed of dedication to the City of Elko for the cul-de-
sac turnaround proposed at the end of the dedicated right-of-way for proper vehicular
circulation.

9. The City Council accepted the petition for vacation at their meeting November 27, 2018.

NRS 278.479 to 278.480 inclusive

1. 278.480(4) If any right-of-way or easement required for a public purpose that is owned
by a city or a county is proposed to be vacated, the governing body, or the planning
commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if authorized to take final action by the
governing body, shall, not less than 10 business days before the public hearing described
in subsection 5.

2. NRS 278.480 (5) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, if, upon public hearing,
the governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if
authorized to take final action by the governing body, is satisfied that the public will not
be materially injured by the proposed vacation, it shall order the street or easement
vacated. The governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other
designee, if authorized to take final action by the governing body, may make the order
conditional, and the order becomes effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed. An applicant or other person aggrieved by the decision of the planning
commission, hearing examiner or other designee may appeal the decision in accordance
with the ordinance adopted pursuant to NRS 278.31895.

3. Per NRS 278.480(6) Public utility companies have been notified of the vacation on
November 19, 2018.

4. It does not appear that there are any City utilities located within the area proposed to be
vacated.

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Industrial Business Park.
2. Supporting zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business Park, Light

Industrial and Industrial Commercial.
3. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community’s image.
4. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from West Idaho Street and P & H Drive.
2. West Idaho Street is classified as a Minor Collector.
3. P & H Drive is not classified but functions as a Commercial / Industrial Collector.
4. The area is near the Exit 298 and I-80 interchange.
5. The property owner is proposing a vehicular turnaround at the end of P & H Drive. This

will require additional area for the development of the circular cul-de-sac to be dedicated
to the City of Elko.



VACATION 3-18
Joy Global Surface Mining
APN: 001-679-014

Page 4 of 5

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

The area proposed for vacation is located outside the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

The area proposed for vacation will be merged with the adjacent property. The existing zone
district, LI – Light Industrial, does not stipulate a minimum lot area requirement. The vacation
will add area to the parcels of record.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 3-2-12 LI, GI INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICTS

1. The area proposed for vacation will be merged with the adjacent property. The merged
areas meet all the area and dimensions stipulated in code.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-12 of City code.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 8-7 STREET VACATION PROCEDURES

1. The proposed vacation is being processed independent of the proposed parcel map, deed
of dedication and proposed development of the property.

The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City code.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

2. The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

3. The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

4. The area proposed for vacation is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

5. The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

6. The proposed vacation is in conformance with Section 3-2-5 of City code.

7. The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section
8-7 of City code.

8. The proposed vacation will not materially injure the public and is in the best interest of
the City.



VACATION 3-18
Joy Global Surface Mining
APN: 001-679-014

Page 5 of 5

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution which
conditionally APPROVES the proposed vacation with the following conditions:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the vacation.

2. A deed of dedication be approved by City Council for the cul-de-sac turnaround radius
before recordation of the vacation.

3. A parcel map to merge the parcels must be approved and recorded prior to the
recordation of the vacation.

4. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard to
the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.























X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXX

X

X

X
X

X

EB

d

SDG

EB

FOUND BRASS CAP AT
THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF SECTION 30, T34N, R55E,
MDB&M

P 
&
 H

 D
R
IV

E

WEST IDAHO ST.

PARCEL NO.1 POB

S
0
1°
0
2
'0

0
"W

 (
B
A
S
IS

 O
F
 B

E
A
R
IN

G
S
) 
2
6
4
7
.9

9
'

PARCEL NO. 2

AT
ES

 O
F A

MER
ICA

L #
 00

5-5
10-

90
0

FOUND BRASS CAP AT
THE WEST QUARTER CORNER
OF SECTION 30, T34N, R55E,
MDB&M

80.00' ROW

N89°58'22"E 411.50'

L=161.80,
R=160.00,

CHORD N61°00'19"E, 154.99

N
32

°0
2'
04

"E
 1
38

.4
3' S57°57'56"E 80.00'

S3
2°

02
'0
4"
W
 1
38

.4
3'

L=242.69,
R=240.00,
CHORD S61°00'14"W, 232.48

S89°58'22"W 411.50'

S
0
1°
0
2
'0

0
"W

 7
0
9
.8

3
'

EAST 459.48'

N00°01'38"W 80.00'

P
&
H
 V

A
C
A
T
IO

N

17
-0

9
-2

0
8

1 
O
F
 1

L
E
G
E
N
D
 E

N
G
IN

E
E
R
IN

G

W
A
S
A
T
C
H
 C

O
U
N
T
Y

V
A
C
A
T
IO

N
 E

X
H
IB

IT

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT ENGINEER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
52 WEST 100 NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEBER CITY, UT 84032

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 435-654-4828

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.legendengineering.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
dsf

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH VACATION AND DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOMATSU EQUIPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXHIBIT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED VACATION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SD SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GATE VALVE AT PUBLIC/PRIVATE BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CURB RETURN WITH: 20' FRONT LIP OF GUTTER RADIUS 18' TBC RADIUS 13' BACK OF WALK RADIUS (TYP BOTH SIDES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROW LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CURB RETURN WITH: 20' FRONT LIP OF GUTTER RADIUS 18' TBC RADIUS 13' BACK OF WALK RADIUS (TYP BOTH SIDES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale in Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SEPTIC SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW DEDICATION AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW LINE  (BACK OF WALK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TURN-AROUND SIZING: 54' FRONT LIP OF GUTTER RADIUS 56' TBC RADIUS 61' BACK OF WALK RADIUS (TYP BOTH SIDES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DRAINAGE PIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVEMENT EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVEMENT EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA RAMP (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED CROSSWALK PER MUTCD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROW LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE TO BE RE-ROUTED BEHIND WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SEWER MAIN



 pg. 1 of 6 

  

  

 

 

PORTION OF P&H DRIVE VACATION 

 A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST, M.D.B.&M., ELKO 

COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT 709.83 FEET S01°02’00”W ALONG THE SECTION LINE AND 459.48 FEET EAST 

FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST, MOUNT 

DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, SAID POINT BEING ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF P&H 

DRIVE AS DEDICATED BY PARCEL MAP FILE NO. 452341; AND RUNNING THENCE N00°01’38”W ALONG 

THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID P&H DRIVE 80.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF SAID P&H DRIVE; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY AND NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE 

FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES; (1) N89°58’22”E 411.50 FEET TO A POINT ON A 160.00 FOOT RADIUS 

CURVE TO THE LEFT; (2) THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE 161.80 FEET (CHORD BEARS N61°00’19”E 154.99 

FEET); (3) THENCE N32°02’04”E 138.43 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY S57°57’56”E 80.00 

FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID P&H DRIVE; THENCE ALONG SAID 

SOUTHEASTERLY AND SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES: (1) 

S32°02’04”W 138.43 FEET TO A POINT ON A 240.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT; (2) THENCE 

ALONG SAID CURVE 242.69 FEET (CHORD BEARS S61°00’14”W 232.48 FEET);  (3) THENCE S89°58’22”W 

411.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 



X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXX

X

X

X
X

X

EB

d

SDG

EB

FOUND BRASS CAP AT
THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF SECTION 30, T34N, R55E,
MDB&M

P 
&
 H

 D
R
IV

E

WEST IDAHO ST.

PARCEL NO.1 POB

S
0
1°
0
2
'0

0
"W

 (
B
A
S
IS

 O
F
 B

E
A
R
IN

G
S
) 
2
6
4
7
.9

9
'

PARCEL NO. 2

AT
ES

 O
F A

MER
ICA

L #
 00

5-5
10-

90
0

FOUND BRASS CAP AT
THE WEST QUARTER CORNER
OF SECTION 30, T34N, R55E,
MDB&M

S
0
1°
0
2
'0

0
"W

 7
0
9
.8

3
'

L=106.45,
R=61.00,

CHORD N32°02'04"E, 93.44

S3
2°

02
'0
4"
W
 9

3.
44

'

N
32

°0
2'
04

"E
 9

0.
73

'

L=102.30,
R=61.00,
CHORD S32°02'04"W, 90.73

EAST 1157.76'
1089.22' 68.54'

N
O
R
T
H
 2

8
7
.5

1'

N
O
R
T
H
 2

4
6
.2

4
'

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 2

C
U
L
-D

E
-S

A
C
 D

E
D
IC

A
T
IO

N

17
-0

9
-2

0
8

1 
O
F
 1

L
E
G
E
N
D
 E

N
G
IN

E
E
R
IN

G

W
A
S
A
T
C
H
 C

O
U
N
T
Y

de
di
ca
ti
on

 e
xh
ib
it

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET



Agenda Item # I.B.5.  

Created on 11/06/2017  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to set regular meeting dates as well 

as special meeting dates for 2019, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  December 4, 2018 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS- MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The following dates are the first Tuesday of each month: 
January 1, 2019 

February 5, 2019 

March 5, 2019 

April 2, 2019 

May 7, 2019 

June 4, 2019 

July 2, 2019 

August 6, 2019  

September 3, 2019 

October 1, 2019 

November 5, 2019 

December 3, 2019 

 
6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 
7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Planning Commission 

 
9. Findings: 

 
10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 
11. Agenda Distribution:  














































































	12-04-18 Agenda.pdf (p.1-5)
	11-06-2018 Draft Minutes.pdf (p.6-12)
	Item I.A.1. Rez 7-18 Carlson.pdf (p.13-30)
	Item I.A.2. Var 11-18 Carlson (setbacks).pdf (p.31-47)
	Item I.A.3. Var 12-18 Carlson (Bldg Size).pdf (p.48-64)
	Item I.A.4. Var 13-18 Carlson (lot size).pdf (p.65-80)
	Item I.A.5. CUP 5-18 MP Elko, LLC.pdf (p.81-100)
	Item I.A.6. Rez 8-18 Koinonia Construction.pdf (p.101-118)
	Item I.A.7. PP 13-18 Koinonia Construction.pdf (p.119-159)
	Item I.B.1. Vac 2-18 AM Engineering.pdf (p.160-179)
	Item I.B.2. SPR 2-18 State of Nevada.pdf (p.180-199)
	Item I.B.3. PKG 2-18 Charm Hospitality.pdf (p.200-217)
	Item I.B.4. Vac 3-18 Joy Global Surface Mining, Inc..pdf (p.218-238)
	Item I.B.5. PC Meeting Dates.pdf (p.239-240)
	Zoning Bulletin - 10-10-18.pdf (p.241-252)
	Zoning Bulletin - 10-25-18.pdf (p.253-264)
	Zoning Bulletin - 11-10-18.pdf (p.265-277)

